IMPORTANT: IF YOU ARE IN ANY DOUBT ABOUT THE CONTENTS OF THIS PROSPECTUS YOU SHOULD CONSULT YOUR PROFESSIONAL ADVISER.

FORESIGHT SICAV

(Société d'investissement à capital variable - UCITS)

Registered Office: 3, rue Gabriel Lippmann, L-5365 Munsbach, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

Luxembourg R.C.S.: B.260310

PROSPECTUS

October 2021

CONTENTS

SECTIONS	PAGE
IMPORTANT INFORMATION	3
1. DEFINITIONS	7
2. DETAILS OF THE COMPANY	16
3. BUYING, REDEEMING, CONVERTING AND SWITCHING SHARES	21
4. VALUATION OF THE COMPANY	34
5. RISK FACTORS	40
6. GOVERNANCE, MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION	47
7. FEES AND EXPENSES	56
8. TAXATION	60
9. DISSOLUTION, LIQUIDATION AND MERGERS	71
10. GENERAL INFORMATION	73
APPENDIX I - FUND DETAILS	77
APPENDIX II - INVESTMENT AND BORROWING POWERS OF THE COMPANY	85
APPENDIX III - DIRECTORY	93

IMPORTANT INFORMATION

Registration in Luxembourg

Foresight SICAV (**Company**) is registered in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg as an undertaking for collective investment pursuant to Part I of the Law of 17th December 2010 on undertakings for collective investment, as amended (**2010 Law**).

Such registration however does not imply a positive assessment by the Luxembourg financial supervisory authority, *Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier* (**CSSF**), of the contents of the Prospectus or of the quality of the shares of the Company (**Shares**) offered for sale. Any representation to the contrary is unauthorised and unlawful.

The Company is an undertaking for collective investment in transferable securities (**UCITS**) for the purpose of Directive 2009/65/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 13th July 2009 on the coordination of laws, regulations and administrative provisions relating to undertakings for collective investment in transferable securities, as amended (**UCITS Directive**).

The Company was incorporated on 11 October 2021 and is registered with the Luxembourg Trade and Companies Register (*Registre du Commerce et des Sociétés*, Luxembourg) under number B.260310. The articles of incorporation of the Company have been published in the *Recueil électronique des sociétés et associations* (**RESA**).

The Company has appointed FundRock Management Company S.A. as its management company (**Management Company**) in accordance with Part I of the 2010 Law.

Reliance on the Prospectus

Shares are offered on the basis of the information contained in this prospectus (**Prospectus**) and the documents referred to herein. Such documents are available from the registered office of the Company.

The Company also publishes key investor information documents (**KIIDs**), which include information about the essential characteristics of each class of Shares in order to enable investors to understand the nature and the risks of an investment in the relevant class of Share and to make their investment decision on an informed basis.

This Prospectus should be read in its entirety before making any application for Shares. If you are in any doubt about the contents of this Prospectus you should consult your financial or other professional adviser.

The Board has taken all reasonable care to ensure that at the date of this Prospectus the information contained herein is accurate in all material respects and that there are no material facts the omission of which would make misleading any statement herein, whether of facts or opinion. The Board accepts responsibility accordingly. However, the Board does not accept responsibility with regard to the content of the Prospectus, the KIID(s) or any information relating to the Shares other than to the Shareholders.

No person has been authorised by the Company to give any information or to make any

representations in connection with the offering of Shares other than those contained in the Prospectus and the documents referred to herein and, if given or made, such information or representations must not be relied on as having been made or authorised by the Company. The delivery of this Prospectus (whether or not accompanied by any reports), the KIID(s) or the issue of Shares shall not, under any circumstances, create any implication that the affairs of the Company have not changed since the date thereof.

Investors may not treat the content of this Prospectus as advice relating to legal, taxation or investment matters and are advised to consult their own professional advisers concerning the acquisition, holding or disposal of an investment in the Company referred to in this Prospectus. Accordingly, prospective investors should inform themselves and take appropriate professional/specialist advice as to the possible legal/tax consequences, the legal/regulatory requirements and any foreign exchange restrictions or exchange control requirements, which they might encounter under the laws of the countries of their nationality, residence or domicile and which might be relevant to the subscription, holding or disposal of the Shares.

Promotion and Distribution

The distribution of this Prospectus and the offering of Shares in certain jurisdictions may be restricted. It is the responsibility of any persons into whose possession this Prospectus comes, and any persons wishing to subscribe for Shares in the Company to inform themselves about and to observe any such restrictions and all applicable laws and regulations of any relevant jurisdictions. This Prospectus does not constitute an offer or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorised or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation.

Distributors and other intermediaries which offer, recommend or sell shares in the Company must comply with all laws, regulations and regulatory requirements as may be applicable to them. Also, such Distributors and other intermediaries must consider such information about the Company and its classes of Shares as is made available by the Company in accordance with applicable laws (including the EU product governance regime under MiFID II). Distributors and intermediaries may obtain further information by contacting the Company.

United Kingdom

While the Company has been authorised by the CSSF as a UCITS, the Company is not, as at the date of this document, recognised as a 'recognised UCITS' by the UK Financial Conduct Authority for the purposes of section 272 of the UK Financial Services and Markets Act 2000. The Company has, however, applied to the UK Financial Conduct Authority for such recognition and will be a 'recognised UCITS' should approval be given by the UK Financial Conduct Authority from the date of such approval. The Company's shares will not be marketed in the UK until such time as it has received approval as a 'recognised UCITS' or equivalent status under any new regime within the UK.

Investors should note, therefore, that the Company is also not currently eligible for ISAs. However, the Investment Manager aims to manage each sub-fund in a manner that would allow the sub-fund's eligibility for ISAs should the Company obtain approval as a 'recognised UCITS'

as referred to above.

United States of America

The Shares have not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended. They may not be offered or sold in the United States of America, its territories and possessions, any state of the United States of America and the District of Columbia or offered or sold to US Persons. The Company has not been and will not be registered under the United States Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended and neither the Management Company nor Foresight Group LLP (**Investment Manager**) has been registered under the United States Investment Advisers Act of 1940.

General

The distribution of this Prospectus in certain jurisdictions may require that this Prospectus is translated into the official language of those countries. Should any inconsistency arise between the translated version and the English version, the English version shall prevail.

This Prospectus is based on information, law and practice at the date hereof. To reflect material changes and subject to CSSF's approval and the terms of this Prospectus, this document may be updated from time to time. The Company cannot be bound by an out of date prospectus when it has issued a new prospectus and investors should check with the Company that this is the most recently published prospectus in relation to the Company.

The Depositary, the Administrator and the Investment Manager are not responsible for the information contained in this Prospectus and accordingly do not accept any responsibility therefor under the 2010 Law, UCITS Directive or otherwise.

International Tax Reporting

As part of the process of implementing the Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (**FATCA**), Luxembourg entered into a Model 1 Intergovernmental Agreement with the US on 28 March 2014 (**IGA**) implemented by the Luxembourg Law of 24 July 2015 (**FATCA Law**) which requires financial institutions located in Luxembourg to regularly obtain and verify information on all of their Shareholders and report to the Luxembourg tax authorities information regarding interests in the Company by certain US persons.

Luxembourg has transposed Council Directive 2014/107/EU of 9 December 2014 by the Luxembourg law of 18 December 2015 (**CRS Law**), which requires financial institutions located in Luxembourg to regularly obtain and verify information on all of their Shareholders and report to Luxembourg tax authorities information regarding interests in the Company by certain persons.

The Company may, therefore, require any applicant or holder (legal or beneficial) of Shares to promptly furnish such data as may be required by the Company in its discretion in order to comply with FATCA and CRS (or any other laws and regulations). Any applicant or shareholder that fails to provide the required information may be subject to a compulsory redemption of their Shares and/or monetary penalties.

Data Protection

The Company will use, process and share your personal data in accordance with applicable data protection laws and regulations including, without limitation, the General Data Protection Regulation (EU) 2016/679 (**GDPR**) and any applicable legislation supplementing and/or implementing GDPR in Luxembourg (**Data Protection Laws**). The Data Protection Laws are designed to strengthen data protection for all individuals.

Further details on our privacy policy and your rights under the Data Protection Laws can be found on our website: http://www.foresightgroup.eu/foresight-sicav/.

Risks of Investing in the Company

Investing in the Company carries substantial risk. There can be no assurance that the investment objectives of the Company or any sub-fund of the Company (**Fund**) will be achieved and investment results may vary substantially over time. Prospective investors should carefully consider whether an investment in Shares is suitable to them in light of their circumstances and financial resources (see further Risk Factors in Section 5 of this document).

It should be remembered that the price of the Shares can go down as well as up. An investor may not get back the amount he has invested, particularly if Shares are redeemed soon after they are issued and the Shares have been subject to an initial charge or a redemption charge. Changes in exchange rates may also cause the value of Shares in the investor's base currency to go up or down.

Shareholder Rights

The attention of investors is drawn to the fact that any investor will only be able to fully exercise their investor rights directly against the Fund, notably the right to participate in general meetings of shareholders, if the investor is registered themselves and in their own name in the register of shareholders for the Company. In cases where an investor invests in the Company through an intermediary investing into the Company in their own name but on behalf of the investor such as a nominee, it may not always be possible for the investor to exercise certain shareholder rights directly against the Company. Investors are advised to take advice on their rights.

1. **DEFINITIONS**

1915 Law

2010 Law

Accumulation Shares

Administrator

AML-TF Laws

Law of 10th August 1915 on commercial companies (as amended)

Law of 17th December 2010 on undertakings for collective investment (as amended);

Shares of a Class for which it is not intended to make distributions as further detailed in paragraph 2.2.2 of Section 2;

Apex Fund Services S.A, or such other entity as is appointed to act as administrative agent, registrar and transfer agent to the Company from time to time, subject to CSSF prior approval;

the anti-money laundering rules and regulations in the jurisdictions in which the company conducts its activities and any related or similar rules, regulations or guidelines, issued, administered or enforced by any competent governmental agency in such jurisdictions, including:

- Directive (EU) 2015/849 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20 May 2015 on the prevention of the use of the financial system for the purposes of money laundering or terrorist financing, as amended or replaced from time to time and as transposed in Luxembourg, including the Luxembourg law of 13 January 2019 establishing the Luxembourg register of beneficial owners (the RBO) (as amended, the UBO Law), which has been supplemented by the Grandducal Regulation of 15 February 2019 on the registration, payment of administrative fees and access to information recorded in the RBO (collectively, the RBO Rules);
- the Luxembourg laws of 12 November 2004 relating to the fight against moneylaundering and the financing of terrorism, as amended (the 2004 AML Law);
- the Luxembourg Grand-ducal Regulation of 1

February 2010 providing details on certain provisions of the 2004 AML Law, as amended; and

 the Luxembourg CSSF Regulation 12-02 of 14 December 2012 on the fight against money laundering and terrorist financing, as amended, and any applicable circulars of the CSSF, pursuant to which obligations have been imposed on all professionals of the financial sector to prevent the use of undertakings for collective investment for money laundering purposes;

Articles of Incorporation

the articles of incorporation of the Company (as amended from time to time);

ATAD

Council Directive (EU) 2016/1164 of 12 July 2016 laying down rules against tax avoidance practices that directly affect the functioning of the internal market, as amended from time to time;

ATAD I

Initial version of Council Directive (EU) 2016/1164 of 12 July 2016 laying down rules against tax avoidance practices that directly affect the functioning of the internal market;

ATAD II

Council Directive (EU) 2017/952 of 29 May 2017 amending Directive (EU) 2016/1164 as regards hybrid mismatches with third countries;

Auditor

Deloitte Audit S.à r.l., or such other entity as is appointed to act as auditor to the Company from time to time, subject to CSSF prior approval;

Base Currency

the currency denomination of the Company, a Fund or a Class;

Board

the board of directors (conseil d'administration) of the Company

Business Day

a day on which banks are open all day for business in Luxembourg;

Central Administration Agreement

as defined in paragraph 6.5 of Section 6;

Class or Classes

in relation to Shares, means (according to the context) all of the Shares related to a single Fund

or a particular class or classes of Share related

to a single Fund;

Company Foresight SICAV;

Conversion the conversion of Shares in one Class in a Fund

to Shares of another Class in the same Fund (and **Convert** and **Converted** shall be construed

accordingly);

Cut Off Point the point prior to which orders to buy, sell or

switch Shares must be received by the Administrator in order for them to be actioned at the next Valuation Point and details of which are

set out for each Fund (if relevant) in Appendix I;

CRS Common Reporting Standard;

CRS Law as defined in paragraph 8.5 of Section 8;

CSSF Commission de Surveillance du Secteur

Financier, the Luxembourg supervisory authority

of the financial sector;

CSSF Circular 04/146 CSSF circular 04/146 on the protection of UCIs

and their investors against Late Trading and

Market Timing practices;

CSSF Circular 14/591 CSSF circular 14/591 regarding the protection of

investors in case of a material change to an open-ended undertaking for collective

investment;

DAC 6 Directive Council Directive (EU) 2018/822 of 25 May 2018;

Data Protection Laws the General Data Protection Regulation (EU)

2016/679 (**GDPR**) and any applicable legislation supplementing and/or implementing GDPR in

Luxembourg;

Dealing DayUnless otherwise provided in Appendix I relating

to a Fund, any Business Day (and the Company, with the agreement of the Management Company and the Depositary, may also select to make a Saturday, Sunday or a bank holiday a dealing date, at its discretion, notification of such a change to be communicated via the Company's

website);

Depositary Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (publ),

Luxembourg Branch, or such other entity as is appointed to act as depositary of the Company,

subject to CSSF prior approval;

Depositary Agreement as defined in paragraph 6.4 of Section 6;

Direct Debit an arrangement made with a bank that allows a

third party to transfer money from a person's

account on agreed dates;

Director or **Directors** the directors of the Company from time to time;

EEA State a member state of the European Union and any

other state which is within the European

Economic Area;

FATCA Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act;

FATCA Law Model 1 Intergovernmental Agreement signed by

Luxembourg and the US on 28 March 2014 (**IGA**) implemented by the Luxembourg Law of 24 July

2015;

Fund or **Funds** a segregated sub-fund of the Company to which

specific assets and liabilities of the Company may be allocated and which is invested in accordance with the investment objective (as well as with such other specific features as described in paragraph 2.2.1 of Section 2) applicable to such

sub-fund;

Global Distribution Agreement as defined in paragraph 6.6 of Section 6;

Income Shares Shares of a Class for which it is intended to make

distributions as further detailed in paragraph

2.2.2 of Section 2;

Initial Offering Period in relation to each Fund and each Class of Shares

means the first offering of Shares in Fund or Class of Shares made at the Initial Subscription

Price pursuant to the terms of the Prospectus;

Initial Subscription Price in relation to each Class of Shares in each Fund means the amount stipulated in the Appendix

relating to such Fund as the subscription price per Share for the relevant Class of Shares in

connection with the Initial Offering Period;

Investment Management Agreement

as defined in paragraph 6.3 of Section 6;

Investment Manager

Foresight Group LLP, and/or such other entity as is appointed to act as the investment manager to the Company/a Fund, subject to CSSF prior approval;

ISA

an individual savings account under the UK Individual Savings Account Regulations 1998 (as amended);

KIIDs

key investor information documents published by the Company with respect to each Class (and each a **KIID**);

Late Trading

the acceptance of a subscription, conversion or redemption order after the Cut Off Point on the relevant day and the execution of such order at the price based on the net asset value applicable to such same day

Management Agreement

as defined in paragraph 6.2 of Section 6;

Management Company

FundRock Management Company S.A, or such other entity as is appointed to act as the management company of the Company, subject to CSSF prior approval;

Market Timing

any market timing practice within the meaning of CSSF Circular 04/146 or as that term may be amended or revised by the CSSF in any subsequent circular, i.e., an arbitrage method through which an investor systematically subscribes and redeems or convert units or shares of the same Luxembourg UCI within a short time period, by taking advantage of time differences and/or imperfections or deficiencies in the methods of determination of the net asset value of the UCI;

Member States

the member states of the EU. The states that are contracting parties to the agreement creating the EEA other than the member states of the EU are considered equivalent to the member states of the EU;

MiFID II

Directive 2014/65/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 15 May 2014 on

markets in financial instruments and amending Directive 2002/92/EC and Directive 2011/61/EU, (as amended from time to time);

Money Market Instruments

instruments normally dealt with on the money markets which are liquid and have a value which can be accurately determined at any time;

Net Asset Value or NAV

the net asset value of the Company or of any Fund or of any Class (as the context may require) less the liabilities of the Company (or of the Fund or of the Class concerned) as calculated in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation and Section 4 below;

non-Member State

means any country or jurisdiction of Eastern and Western Europe, Asia, Oceania, Australia, the American continents and Africa which is not a Member State;

OECD

the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development;

OTC

as defined in paragraph 5.15 of Section 5;

PRI Principles

the following six principles:

- (a) incorporate ESG issues into investment analysis and decision-making processes;
- (b) be active owners and incorporate ESG issues into any ownership policy and practice;
- (c) seek appropriate disclosure on ESG issues by entities in which (or on behalf of which) it invests;
- (d) promote acceptance and implementation of PRI principles within the investment industry;
- (e) work together to enhance effectiveness in implementing PRI principles;
- (f) report on activities and progress made towards implementing the PRI principles;

Prospectus

this document (as amended or supplemented from time to time subject as the case may be to CSSF prior approval); **RESA** Recueil électronique des sociétés et associations;

Register the register of Shareholders of the Company;

Regular Savings Plan an optional savings plan which facilitates regular

monthly investments for an investor via Direct

Debit (see paragraph 3.1.3 of Section 3);

Regulated Market a regulated market as defined by MiFID II;

Regulations the 1915 Law, 2010 Law, AML-TF Laws, CSSF

Circulars, Grand Ducal and CSSF regulations and circulars and any Luxembourg legislation

applicable to the Company;

SFT securities financing transactions within the

meaning of SFTR;

SFDR Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 of the European

Parliament and of the Council of 27 November 2019 on sustainability-related disclosures in the

financial services sector;

SFTR Regulation (EU) 2015/2365 of the European

Parliament and of the Council of 25 November 2015 on transparency of securities financing

transactions and of reuse;

Share or **Shares** a share or shares in the Company;

Shareholder a holder of registered Shares in the Company;

Sustainable Investment Criteria the following criteria:

(i) sustainable development contribution;

contribution towards decarbonisation;

(ii) environmental footprint; localised

environmental impacts;

(iii) social engagement; role in the local

communities;

(iv) governance; compliance with laws and

regulations; and

(v) third party interactions; supply chain

sustainability;

Switch the exchange where permissible of Shares of one

Class in one Fund for Shares of another Class in

another Fund;

Target Benchmark

as defined in Appendix 1 in respect of the relevant Fund;

Taxonomy Regulation

Regulation (EU) 2020/852 of the European Parliament and Council Regulation of 18 June 2020 on the establishment of a framework to facilitate sustainable investment, and amending SFDR;

Transferable Securities

- 1. shares and other securities equivalent to shares;
- 2. bonds and other debt instruments;
- 3. any other negotiable securities, which carry the right to acquire any such transferable securities by subscription or exchange, with the exclusion of techniques and instruments in accordance with article 42 of the 2010 Law;

total return swap, i.e. a derivative contract as defined in point (7) of article 2 of the SFTR in which one counterparty transfers the total economic performance, including income from interest and fees, gains and losses from price movements, and credit losses, of a reference obligation to another counterparty;

an undertaking for collective investment within the meaning of article 1, paragraph (2), points a) and b) UCITS Directive, whether situated in a EU Member State or not, provided that:

- such UCI is authorised under laws which provide that it is subject to supervision that is considered by the CSSF to be equivalent to that laid down in EU law, and that cooperation between authorities is sufficiently ensured;
- the level of protection for shareholders in such UCI is equivalent to that provided for shareholders in a UCITS, and in particular that the rules on asset segregation, borrowing, lending, and uncovered sales of Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments are equivalent to the

TRS

UCI

requirements of the UCITS Directive;

UCITS Directive

the European Parliament and Council Directive of 13 July 2009 on the coordination of laws, regulations and administrative provisions relating to undertakings for collective investment in transferable securities (UCITS) (No. 2009/65/EC) (as amended from time to time);

UCITS

a collective investment scheme such as the Company, which complies with the UCITS Directive and therefore enjoys certain benefits (including, for the avoidance of doubt, passporting rights) conferred under that directive;

UK Consumer Prices Index

the consumer prices index published by the UK Office for National Statistics (or equivalent if replaced);

US Persons

a person who falls within the definition of 'US Person' as defined in rule 902 of regulation S of the United States Securities Act 1933;

Valuation Point

the point, whether on a periodic basis or for a particular valuation, at which the Administrator carries out a computation of the NAV for the Company or a Fund (as the case may be) for the purpose of determining the price at which Shares of a Class may be issued, switched, cancelled or redeemed. For details of the Valuation Point of a Fund please see Appendix I; and

VAT

as defined in paragraph 8.2.3 of Section 8.

2. DETAILS OF THE COMPANY

2.1 General

2.1.1 The Company is an open-ended investment company with variable capital (SICAV) incorporated as a public limited company (société anonyme) under the laws of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg on 11 October 2021. The Company is subject to the provisions of the 2010 Law and of the 1915 Law insofar as the 2010 Law does not derogate therefrom.

2.1.2 **Registered Office**

The registered office of the Company is at 3, rue Gabriel Lippmann, L-5365 Munsbach, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg.

2.1.3 Address for Service

The registered office is the address of the place in Luxembourg for service on the Company of notices or other documents required or authorised to be served on it.

2.1.4 **Base Currency**

The Base Currency of the Company is the Euro (EUR). The Base Currency of each Fund is indicated in Appendix I.

2.1.5 **Share Capital**

Due to the Company having a variable capital, the capital of the Company shall at all times be equal to the Net Asset Value of the Company, i.e. the total of its assets less the total of its liabilities.

The initial share capital of the Company at incorporation was thirty thousand Euro (EUR 30,000.-) represented by 30,000 fully paid up Shares at an issue price of one Euro (EUR 1.-). The minimum share capital of the Company imposed by the 2010 Law is one million two hundred and fifty thousand Euro (EUR 1,250,000.-) or any equivalent amount in any other currency converted into Euro and must be reached within a period of six months following the authorisation of the Company by the CSSF as a UCITS under the 2010 Law, and at any time thereafter, being provided that Shares of a Fund held by another Fund of the Company will not be taken into account for the purpose of the calculation of the minimum capital requirements. The Company's share capital is automatically adjusted when additional Shares are issued or outstanding Shares are redeemed, and no special announcements or publicity are necessary in relation thereto.

Shares in the Company may be marketed in other Member States and in countries outside the European Union and European Economic Area, subject to the 2010 Law, the UCITS Directive and any regulatory constraints in those countries, if the Board so decides.

Each of the Funds is designed and managed to support longer-term investment and active trading is discouraged. Short-term or excessive trading into and out of

a Fund may harm performance by disrupting portfolio management strategies and by increasing expenses. The Board may, in its discretion and to comply with CSSF Circular 04/146, refuse to accept applications (in whole or part) for, converting or switching of, Shares, especially where transactions are deemed disruptive, particularly from possible market timers or investors who, in its opinion, have a pattern of short-term or excessive trading or whose trading has been or may be disruptive to the Funds (including in order to comply with Circular 04/146). Accordingly, the Company may, in the sole discretion of the Board or the Management Company, compulsorily redeem Shares from any investor that the Company or the Management Company reasonably believes has engaged in Market Timing activity. For these purposes, the Board may consider an investor's trading history in the Funds.

In addition to any charge imposed on Shares' subscription, redemption or conversion which may be of application to such orders as set forth in Appendix I in relation to the relevant Fund, the Company and the Management Company may impose a penalty of maximum 2% of the Net Asset Value of the Shares subscribed, redeemed, switched or converted where the Company reasonably believes that an investor has engaged in Market Timing activity. The penalty will be credited to the relevant Fund. The Company, the Management Company and the Board will not be held liable for any loss resulting from rejected orders or mandatory redemption.

Furthermore, the Company will ensure that the relevant deadlines for requests for subscriptions, redemptions, switches or conversions are strictly complied with and will therefore take all adequate measures to prevent practices known as Late Trading.

The Shares are not currently listed on the any stock exchange, but the Board may decide at its discretion that Share Classes may be listed or admitted to trading on any stock exchange. Where applicable, full details on the listing of each Share Class may be obtained at any time at the registered office of the Company upon request.

There is no limit to the number of Shares which may be issued.

Shares will (unless otherwise decided by the Board) be issued to subscribers in registered form. The Board may in its sole discretion decide to arrange for Shares of any Class in any Fund to be held in uncertificated form, for example through accounts maintained with either Clearstream or Euroclear. Should this be made available, please contact the Administrator for further information about the procedures involved. Investors should note that this may restrict deliveries (whether on subscription or reinvestment) of fractional Shares to whole Shares or to a certain number of decimal places (depending on the provider). In addition, certain providers do not cater for reinvestment of distributions.

2.2 The Structure of the Company

2.2.1 The Funds

The Company is structured as an umbrella company, in that different Funds may be established from time to time. On the introduction of any new Fund or Class with the approval of the CSSF, a revised Prospectus will be prepared setting out the relevant details of each Fund or Class.

The Company was created for an unlimited duration, yet each Fund may be created for a limited or unlimited duration. Each Fund may have its own specific investment objective and policy, investment strategy, distribution policy, Base Currency, duration, costs structure or any other specific features.

The assets of each Fund will be treated as separate from those of every other Fund and will be invested in accordance with the investment objective and investment policy applicable to that Fund. Investment of the assets of each of the Funds must comply with the 2010 Law, CSSF circulars and regulations, the investment objective and policy of the relevant Fund.

In each Fund, Shares of one or more Classes may be issued, whose assets will be commonly invested pursuant to the specific investment policy of the relevant Fund, but where a specific currency of denomination or other specific feature may apply to each Class. A separate Net Asset Value per Share, which may differ as a consequence of currency factors, will be calculated for each Class.

Details of the Funds, including their investment objectives and policies, and Classes that may be issued and their criteria for subscription in respect of each Fund, as currently available, are set out in Appendix I.

A detailed statement of the general investment and borrowing restrictions in respect of each type of Fund is set out in Appendix II.

Segregated Liability

In accordance with article 181(1) of the 2010 Law, each Fund corresponds to a separate portfolio of assets and liabilities of the Company. The assets of a Fund belong exclusively to that Fund, and shall not be used to discharge directly or indirectly the liabilities of, or claims against, any other person or body, including the Company or any other Fund, and shall not be available for any such purpose.

Accordingly, the rights of the Shareholders and creditors relating to a Fund or arising from the setting-up, operation and liquidation of a Fund are limited to the assets of that Fund. The assets of a Fund are exclusively dedicated to the satisfaction of the rights of the Shareholders relating to that Fund and the rights of those creditors whose claims have arisen in connection with the setting-up, operation and liquidation of that Fund.

Each Fund will be charged with the liabilities, expenses, costs and charges of the Company attributable to that Fund, and within each Fund charges will be allocated

between Classes in accordance with the terms of issue of Shares of those Classes. Any assets, liabilities, expenses, costs or charges not attributable to a particular Fund will be allocated by the Board in a manner which it believes is fair to the Shareholders generally. This will normally be pro rata to the Net Asset Value of the relevant Funds.

2.2.2 **Shares and Classes**

Fractional Shares may be issued up to four (4) decimal places rounded up or down to the nearest decimal point and will carry proportionate rights, i.e. they will have the right to participate pro rata in distributions and allocation of liquidation proceeds, but will carry no voting rights (except to the extent their number is so that they represent a whole Share, in which case, they confer a voting right).

Within each Class in each Fund subject to their denomination, Shares are entitled to participate equally in the profits arising in respect of, and in the proceeds of, the liquidation of the Company or termination of a relevant Fund. Shares do not carry preferential or pre-emptive rights to acquire further Shares.

Within the same Fund, all Shares have equal rights as regards voting rights in all general meetings of Shareholders and in all meetings of the Fund concerned.

Further Classes may be established from time to time by the Board with the approval of the CSSF, the agreement of the Management Company and the Depositary and in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation. The Base Currency for each new Class will be determined at the date of creation and set out in the revised prospectus.

The net proceeds from subscriptions to a Fund will be invested in the specific pool of assets constituting that Fund.

To the extent that any asset or liability (including any costs, charges or expenses) is not attributable to one Fund (or in a Fund to one Class) only, the Board will allocate such asset or liability between Funds (or Classes) in a manner which is fair in proportion to the Net Asset Value of the Funds (or relevant Classes) if the Company determines, in its sole discretion, that this is a fair method of allocation.

Holders of Income Shares are entitled to be paid the distributable income attributed to such Shares on any relevant interim and annual allocation dates.

Holders of Accumulation Shares are not entitled to be paid the income attributed to such Shares, but that income is automatically transferred to (and retained as part of) the capital assets of the relevant Fund on the relevant interim and/or annual accounting dates and increases the Net Asset Value of the relevant Class. This is therefore reflected in the price of an Accumulation Share.

The Articles of Incorporation allow Income Shares and Accumulation Shares to be issued. **Income Shares** are Shares in respect of which income allocated to them is distributed periodically to the relevant Shareholders. **Accumulation Shares** are Shares whereby income is credited periodically to capital. In accordance with

relevant tax law, distribution or allocation of income is made gross without any tax being deducted or accounted for by the Company. Full details concerning taxation may be found in Section 9 of this document.

Shareholders are entitled (subject to certain restrictions) to Convert all or part of their Shares in a Class for Shares of another Class within the same Fund or to Switch Shares for another of the same or another Class within a different Fund of the Company. Details of this conversion and switching facility and the restrictions are set out in paragraph 3.4 'Conversion and Switching' of Section 3.

3. BUYING, REDEEMING, CONVERTING AND SWITCHING SHARES

The dealing office of the Administrator is normally open from 9am to 5pm (Luxembourg time) on each Dealing Day to receive requests by for the purchase, sale, conversion and switching of Shares. Please send any requests to the Administrator by email to registrations@apexfunds.lu and Dealing@apexfunds.lu. Requests may also be sent to the Distributor (or a sub-distributor) who will then send relevant orders to the Administrator. The initial investment must be accompanied by a subscription form.

In addition, the Company may from time to time make arrangements to allow Shares to be bought or sold on-line or through other communication media. Where the buyer has access to electronic dealing (such as EMX or Calastone), the Administrator has the facility to accept electronic transactions via STP. The Company may also, in its discretion, introduce further methods of dealing in Shares in the future. At present, transfer of title by electronic communication is not accepted.

A request for dealing in Shares must be received by the Cut Off Point on a particular Dealing Day in order to be processed on that Dealing Day. A dealing request received after this time will be held over and processed on the next Dealing Day, using the Net Asset Value per Share calculated as at the Valuation Point on that next Dealing Day. For details of the Cut Off Point and Valuation Point, please see Appendix I.

3.1 Buying Shares

3.1.1 **Procedure**

Shares may be bought directly from the Administrator or through a professional adviser or other intermediary. For details of dealing charges see paragraph 3.5 below. Subscription forms may be obtained from the Administrator.

Valid applications to purchase Shares in a Fund received during the Initial Offering Period will be processed at the Initial Subscription Price. Thereafter, valid applications to purchase Shares in a Fund received before the Cut Off Point will be processed at the Share price calculated, based on the Net Asset Value per Share, at the next Valuation Point following receipt of the application, except in the case where dealing in a Fund has been suspended as set out in paragraph 3.11 below. An application is only considered valid upon receipt of sufficient anti-money-laundering documentation and information.

The Company, at its discretion, has the right to cancel a purchase deal if settlement is materially overdue and any loss arising on such cancellation shall be the liability of the applicant. For postal applications payment in full must accompany the instruction. At the Company's discretion, payment for large purchases of Shares may be made by telegraphic transfer.

A purchase of Shares in writing or any other communication media made available is a legally binding contract.

Applications to purchase, once made are, save as otherwise set out in this Prospectus, irrevocable. However, the Company has the right to reject, on

reasonable grounds, relating to the circumstances of the applicant, any application for Shares in whole or part, and in this event the Administrator will return any money sent, or the balance of such monies, at the risk of the applicant.

Any subscription monies remaining after a whole number of Shares has been issued will not be returned to the applicant. Instead, fractional Shares will be issued.

As part of the process of implementing FATCA, Luxembourg entered into the IGA which requires financial institutions located in Luxembourg to regularly obtain and verify information on all of its Shareholders and report to Luxembourg tax authorities information regarding interests in the Company by certain US persons.

The Company may, therefore, require any applicant or holder (legal or beneficial) of Shares to promptly furnish such data as pay be required by the Company in its discretion in order to comply with FATCA (or any other laws and regulations). Any applicant or shareholder that fails to provide the required information may be subject to a compulsory redemption of their Shares and/or monetary penalties. This information may then be passed to other tax authorities. Any shareholder that fails to provide the required information may be subject to a compulsory redemption of their Shares and/or monetary penalties.

By signing the subscription form to subscribe for Shares in the Company, each Shareholder is agreeing to provide such information and any anti-money-laundering documentation upon request from the Company or its delegate.

Please note that the Company may treat Shareholders as a Specified U.S. Person where the Administrator is unable to establish that this is not the case.

Shareholders who are concerned about their position are encouraged to consult with their own tax advisers regarding the possible implications of FATCA on their interest in the Company.

3.1.2 **Documents the Buyer will Receive**

A confirmation giving details of the number and price of Shares bought will be issued no later than the end of the Business Day following the later of receipt of the application to buy Shares and the Valuation Point by reference to which the price is determined.

Unless otherwise provided with respect to a Fund in Appendix I, settlement is due within four Business Days of the Valuation Point (T+4, the **Settlement Day**). An order for the purchase of Shares will only be deemed to have been accepted by the Company once it is in receipt of cleared funds for the application.

Unless otherwise agreed by the Company, payment in respect of any transaction in Shares must be received in cleared funds on or before the Settlement Day. The Company shall be entitled without giving prior notice to the buyer, to cancel, in whole or part, any transaction in respect of which the amount due remains unpaid

after Settlement Day. This provision shall not be affected by any requirement to serve a cancellation notice in respect of the transaction in question.

The Company reserves the right to charge interest (calculated on a daily basis) on monies overdue in respect of a purchase of Shares at a rate of 2% per annum above the applicable Luxembourg late payment interest rate as defined by article 12 of the Luxembourg law of 18 April 2004 relating to late payment and late interest rates.

Share certificates will not be issued in respect of Shares. Ownership of Shares will be evidenced by an entry on the Register. Statements in respect of periodic distributions on Shares will show the number of Shares held by the recipient.

3.1.3 **Regular Savings Plan**

The Company may make available certain Classes of Shares of any Fund through the Regular Savings Plan (details of current Classes of Shares and Funds which are available are shown in Appendix I). To invest in this way, Shareholders must complete and return to the Administrator the relevant plan subscription form and direct debit form before contributions may begin. Monthly contributions may be increased, decreased (subject to maintaining the minimum level of contribution) or stopped at any time by notifying such party as the Company may direct. If, however, payments are not made into the Regular Savings Plan for more than six months and the Shareholder holds less than the minimum holding for that Class, then the Company reserves the right to redeem that Shareholder's entire holding in that Class. Confirmations will not be issued to Shareholders investing through a Regular Savings Plan.

Contributions to the Regular Savings Plan will normally be collected on a monthly basis usually on the first Dealing Day of each month with Shares being allocated at the Share price ruling at the Valuation Point (subject to any applicable initial charge) on the same day.

For Shares purchased through the Regular Savings Plan, the minimum monthly investment is stated in Appendix I.

Statements detailing all Share transactions will be sent out to all monthly savers at least on a six monthly basis.

All costs and expenses of facilitating the Regular Savings Plan are borne by the Company as a general expense and allocated to each Fund proportionately (as set out in paragraph 7.2 below).

3.1.4 Minimum Subscriptions and Holdings

The minimum initial subscription, subsequent subscription and holding levels for each Class of Share in a Fund are set out in Appendix I.

The Company may, in its sole discretion, accept subscriptions and/or holdings

lower than the minimum amount(s).

If following a redemption, Conversion, Switch or transfer a holding in any Class of Share should fall below the minimum holding for that Class, the Board has the discretion to effect a redemption of that Shareholder's entire holding in that Class of Share. The Board may use this discretion at any time. Failure not to do so immediately after such redemption, Conversion, Switch or transfer does not remove this right.

3.2 Redeeming Shares

3.2.1 **Procedure**

Every Shareholder is entitled on any Dealing Day to redeem its Shares which shall be purchased by the relevant Fund and cancelled.

Valid instructions to the Administrator to redeem Shares in a Fund (received before the Cut Off Point, if appropriate) will be processed at the Share price calculated, based on the Net Asset Value per Share, at the next Valuation Point following receipt of the instruction, except in the case where dealing in a Fund has been suspended as set out in paragraph 3.11 below.

A redemption instruction in respect of Shares in writing or any other communication media made available is a legally binding contract. However, an instruction to the Administrator to redeem Shares, although irrevocable (except during any period where the determination of the Net Asset Value, the issue, redemption and conversion of Shares is suspended), may not be settled by either the Company or the Administrator if the redemption represents Shares where the money due on the earlier purchase of those Shares has not yet been received or if insufficient documentation or anti-money laundering information has been received by the Administrator.

For details of dealing charges see paragraph 3.5 below.

3.2.2 **Documents a Redeeming Shareholder will Receive**

A confirmation giving details of the number and price of Shares redeemed (will be sent to the redeeming Shareholder (or the first named Shareholder, in the case of joint Shareholders) together with (if sufficient written instructions have not already been given) a form of redemption notice for completion and execution by the Shareholder (or, in the case of a joint holding, by all the joint Shareholders) or their authorised signatory no later than the end of the Business Day following the later of the request to redeem Shares or the Valuation Point by reference to which the price is determined.

Payment of redemption proceeds will normally be made via bank transfer to the account indicated by the Shareholder in its subscription request or in accordance with any instruction received (the Administrator may recover any bank charge levied on such transfers). Instructions to make payments to third parties (other than intermediaries associated with the redemption) will not normally be accepted.

Unless otherwise provided with respect to a Fund in Appendix I, such payment will be made within four Business Days of the later of (a) receipt by the Administrator of the redemption notice (or other sufficient written instructions) duly signed and completed by all the relevant Shareholders (or their authorized signatory) together with any other documentation and appropriate evidence of title, any required antimoney laundering related documentation, and (b) the Valuation Point following receipt by the Administrator of the request to redeem.

3.2.3 **Minimum Redemption**

Part of a Shareholder's holding may be redeemed but the Company reserves the right to refuse a redemption request if the value of the Shares of any Fund to be redeemed is less than the minimum stated in respect of the appropriate Class in the Fund in question (see Appendix I).

3.2.4 Regular Withdrawal Facility

The Company offers a regular withdrawal facility. For further details on this facility and on which Funds and which Share Classes it is available, please see details in Appendix I.

3.3 Method of delivery of applications or other instructions to deal in shares

Instructions (including applications and redemptions) sent to the Administrator should be sent by email to the Administrator at DealingLux@apexfunds.lu.

3.4 Conversion and Switching

Subject to any restrictions on the eligibility of investors for a particular Share Class (or a Fund), including any minimum subscription or holding amounts, a Shareholder in a Fund may at any time:

- (i) Convert all or some of their Shares of one Class in a Fund for another Class in the same Fund; or
- (ii) Switch all or some of their Shares in one Fund for Shares in another Fund in the Company.

Conversions

Conversions will be effected by the Administrator recording the change of Share Class on the Register.

If a Shareholder wishes to Convert Shares of one Class in a Fund (**Original Conversion Shares**) for a number of Shares in another Class of the same Fund (**New Conversion Shares**) he should apply to the Administrator in the same manner as for a sale as set out below.

The number of Converted Shares issued will be determined by reference to the respective prices of New Conversion Shares and Original Conversion Shares at the Valuation Point applicable at the time the Original Conversion Shares are redeemed and the New

Conversion Shares are issued, in accordance with the following formula:

$$A = \frac{(B \times C \times D)}{F}$$

where:

A is the number of New Conversion Shares;

B is the number of Original Conversion Shares;

C is the net asset value per Original Conversion Share as at the Valuation Point;

D is the actual rate of exchange on the day concerned in respect of the reference currency of the Original Conversion Shares and the reference currency of the New Conversion Shares; and

E is the net asset value per New Conversion Share as at the Valuation Point.

Conversions will be effected at the next Valuation Point following receipt of instructions to Convert from a Shareholder.

There is no fee on Conversions.

Switches

Subject to the qualifications below, a Shareholder may at any time Switch all or some of their Shares of one Class in a Fund (**Original Switch Shares**) for a number of Shares of another Fund (**New Switch Shares**).

The number of New Shares issued will be determined by reference to the respective prices of New Shares and Original Shares at the Valuation Point applicable at the time the Original Shares are redeemed and the New Shares are issued.

The Company may at its discretion make a charge on the switching of Shares between Funds. Any such charge on switching does not constitute a separate charge payable by a Shareholder, but is rather the application of any redemption charge on the Original Shares and any initial charge on the New Shares, subject to certain waivers. For details of the charges on switching currently payable, please see paragraph 3.5.3 'Charges on Switching and Conversion' below.

If a partial Switch would result in the Shareholder holding a number of Original Shares or New Shares of a value which is less than the minimum holding in the Class concerned, the Company may, in its discretion, convert the whole of the applicant's holding of Original Shares to New Shares (and make a charge on switching on such conversion) or refuse to effect any Switch of the Original Shares. Save as otherwise specifically set out, the general provisions on procedures relating to redemption will apply equally to a Switch. Written instructions must be received by the Administrator before the Valuation Point on a Dealing Day in the Funds concerned to be dealt with at the prices at the Valuation Point on that Dealing Day or at such other Valuation Point as the Administrator at the request of the Shareholder giving the relevant instruction may agree. Switching requests received after

a Valuation Point will be held over until the next day which is a Dealing Day in each of the relevant Funds.

The Administrator may adjust the number of New Shares to be issued to reflect the application of any charge on switching together with any other charges or levies in respect of the application for the New Shares or redemption of the Original Shares.

Please note that under applicable tax law a Switch of Shares in one Fund for Shares in any other Fund may be treated as a redemption and sale of the Original Shares and a purchase of New Shares and may, for persons subject to taxation, be a realisation of the Original Shares for the purposes of capital gains taxation, which may give rise to a liability to tax, depending upon the Shareholder's circumstances.

A Shareholder who Switches Shares in one Fund for Shares in any other Fund (or who Switches between Classes of Shares) will not be given a right by law to withdraw from or cancel the transaction.

Mandatory Conversion

The Company may also, in its sole discretion, convert all of an existing class of shares (**Old Class Shares**) in a Fund to a new class of shares (**New Class Shares**) in the same Fund (so that there is a reorganisation of the shares in the Fund in which all Shareholders holding Old Class Shares exchange such shares for New Class Shares in the Fund), provided that the conversion is in the best interests of the Shareholders of the Old Class Shares. The Company will provide all of the Shareholders of the Old Class Shares with 1 month' prior notice of any such conversion granting them a right to redeem their Shares without charge before such conversion in accordance with CSSF Circular 14/591.

3.5 Dealing Charges

The price per Share at which Shares are bought, redeemed, converted or switched is the Net Asset Value per Share. Any initial charge, or redemption charge is deducted from the gross subscription or the proceeds of the redemption monies.

3.5.1 **Initial Charge**

The Company may impose a charge on the purchase of Shares in each Class. The current initial charge is calculated as a percentage of the amount invested by a potential Shareholder in respect of each Share Class as set out in Appendix I. The Company may waive or discount the initial charge at its discretion or provide for another calculation method in accordance with Appendix I relating to the relevant Fund.

The initial charge (which is deducted from subscription monies) is payable by the Shareholder to the Company.

The current initial charge of a Fund or Class may only be increased in accordance with CSSF Circular 14/591.

Subject to applicable rules and regulations, from the initial charge received, or out of other of its own resources, the Company may pay a commission to relevant intermediaries.

3.5.2 **Redemption Charge**

The Company may make a charge on the redemption of Shares in each Class. Please see Appendix I for details of which Funds apply a redemption charge.

The Company may only introduce a redemption charge in accordance with CSSF Circular 14/591. Also, if such a charge was introduced, it would not apply to Shares issued before the date of the introduction (i.e., those not previously subject to a redemption charge).

There is currently no charge for redeeming Shares in any of the Classes.

3.5.3 **Charges on Switching and Conversion**

If a redemption charge is payable in respect of the Original Shares, this may become payable instead of, or as well as, the then prevailing initial charge for the New Shares. The charge on switching is payable by the Shareholder to the Company for the account of original Fund.

There is currently no charge for switching between Funds or for converting Shares in one Class of a Fund for Shares in another Class of the same Fund.

3.5.4 **Dilution Adjustment**

The actual cost of purchasing, selling or switching assets and investments in the Funds may deviate from the mid-market value used in calculating its Share price, due to dealing charges, taxes, and any spread between buying and selling prices of that Fund's underlying investments. These costs could have an adverse effect on the value of a Fund, known as 'dilution'. In order to mitigate the effect of dilution, the Company is allowed adjust the sale and purchase price of Shares in the Funds to take into account the possible effects of dilution. This practice is known as making a 'dilution adjustment' or operating swinging single pricing as further described in the CSSF FAQ of 7 April 2020 on the swing pricing mechanism and the Luxembourg Association on Investment Fund (ALFI) guidance on swing pricing. The power to make a dilution adjustment may only be exercised for the purpose of reducing dilution in the Funds. Unless expressly set out in the Appendix in respect of a Fund, dilution adjustment will be applicable in respect of all Funds.

The price of each Class of Share in each Fund will be calculated separately but any dilution adjustment will in percentage terms affect the price of Shares of each Class identically.

The Company reserves the right to make a dilution adjustment every day. The dilution adjustment is calculated using the estimated dealing costs of a Fund's underlying investments and taking into consideration any dealing spreads, commission and transfer taxes. The need to make a dilution adjustment will

depend on the difference between the value of Shares being acquired and the value of Shares being redeemed as a proportion of the total value of that Fund. The measurement period will typically be a single day but, where a trend develops so that for a number of days in a row there is a surplus of acquisitions or redemptions on each and every day, the aggregate effect of such acquisitions or redemptions as a proportion of the total relevant Fund value will be considered.

Where a Fund is experiencing net acquisitions of its Shares the dilution adjustment would increase the price of Shares above their mid-market value. Where a Fund is experiencing net redemptions the dilution adjustment would decrease the price of Shares to below their mid-market value.

It is the Company's policy to reserve the right to impose a dilution adjustment on purchases, sales and switches of Shares of whatever size and whenever made. In the event that a dilution adjustment is made it will be applied to all transactions in a Fund during the relevant measurement period and all transactions during the relevant measurement period will be dealt on the same price inclusive of the dilution adjustment.

The Company's decision on whether or not to make this adjustment, and at what level this adjustment might be made in a particular case or generally, will not prevent it from making a different decision on future similar transactions.

On the occasions when a dilution adjustment is not applied if a Fund is experiencing net acquisitions of Shares or net redemptions there may be an adverse impact on the assets of that Fund attributable to each underlying Share, although the Company does not consider this likely to be material in relation to the potential future growth in value of a Share. As dilution is directly related to the inflows and outflows of monies from the Fund it is not possible to accurately predict whether dilution will occur at any future point in time. Consequently it is also not possible to accurately predict how frequently the Company will need to make a dilution adjustment.

The dilution adjustment will be applied to the mid-price for the Shares resulting in a figure calculated up to six decimal places. The final digit in this figure will then be rounded either up or down in accordance with standard mathematical principles resulting in the final price for the Shares.

It is envisaged (based on future projections) that a dilution adjustment will be applied from time to time.

The dilution adjustment for any one Fund may vary over time because the dilution adjustment for each Fund will be calculated by reference to the costs of dealing in the underlying investments of that Fund, including any dealing spreads, and these can vary with market conditions. The maximum swing factor applicable to each Fund is set at 2% of the Net Asset Value, unless in case of exceptional circumstances as notified by the Management Company to the Shareholders and the CSSF.

3.6 Money Laundering

Pursuant to international rules issued from time to time and the AML-TF Laws, obligations have been imposed on all professionals of the financial sector to prevent the use of undertakings for collective investment for money laundering and financing of terrorism purposes.

As a result of such provisions, the Administrator (on behalf of itself and the Company) must ascertain the identity of the subscriber in accordance with AML-TF Laws. The Administrator may require subscribers to provide any document it deems necessary to effect such identification. In addition, the Administrator (on its own behalf or on behalf of the Company) is under an obligation to identify the origin of the monies received from an investor. As set out above, any subscriptions may be temporarily suspended until the Administrator has properly identified the source of monies.

In case of delay or failure by an applicant to provide the documents required, the application for subscription (or, if applicable, for redemption) will not be accepted. Neither the Company nor the Administrator have any liability for delays or failure to process deals as a result of the applicant providing no or only incomplete documentation.

Shareholders may be requested to provide additional or updated identification documents from time to time pursuant to ongoing client due diligence requirements under relevant laws and regulations.

In accordance with the AML-TF Laws and in particular article 3 of CSSF Regulation 12-02, the Administrator will perform initial and ongoing due diligence and controls on intermediaries (e.g. nominees) acting on behalf of investors and applying a risk-based approach and considering specific and potential risks of money-laundering and terrorism financing on each such intermediary and their final investors.

In accordance with the AML-TF Laws, the Company will perform initial and ongoing due diligence and controls on investments, portfolio companies and other holding or intermediate vehicles held by the Company for the account of any Fund with respect to the fight against money-laundering and the financing of terrorism following a risk-based approach and considering specific and potential risks of money laundering and terrorism financing on each investment.

3.7 Transfers

Shareholders are entitled to transfer their Shares to another person or body. All transfers must be in writing in the form of an instrument of transfer approved by the Company for this purpose. Completed instruments of transfer must be returned to the Administrator in order for the transfer to be registered by the Company. At present, transfer of title by electronic communication is not accepted.

3.8 Restrictions and Compulsory Transfer and Redemption

The Company may from time to time impose such restrictions as it may think necessary for the purpose of ensuring that no Shares are acquired or held by any person in breach of the law or governmental regulation (or any interpretation of a law or regulation by a competent authority) of any country or territory or which would result in the Company incurring any liability to taxation which the Company is not able to recoup itself or suffering any other adverse consequence. In this connection, the Company may, inter alia, reject at its discretion any application for the purchase, redemption, transfer, conversion or switching of Shares.

If it comes to the notice of the Company that any Shares (affected Shares):

- (a) are owned directly or beneficially in breach of any law or governmental regulation (or any interpretation of a law or regulation by a competent authority) of any country or territory; or
- (b) would result in the Company incurring any liability to taxation which the Company would not be able to recoup itself or suffering any other adverse consequence (including a requirement to register under any securities or investment or similar laws or governmental regulation of any country or territory);
- (c) are held in any manner by virtue of which the Shareholder or Shareholders in question is/are not qualified to hold such Shares or if it reasonably believes this to be the case; or
- (d) are owned by a Shareholder who is registered in a jurisdiction (where the Fund is not registered or recognised by the relevant competent authority) whereby communication with that Shareholder by the Company, or any delegate on behalf of the Fund, might constitute a breach of the regulations in that jurisdiction (unless specific action is taken by the Company, or such delegate, to prevent such a communication constituting a breach).

The Company may give notice to the Shareholder(s) of the affected Shares requiring the transfer of such Shares to a person who is qualified or entitled to own them or that a request in writing be given for the redemption of such Shares. If any Shareholder upon whom such a notice is served does not within 30 days after the date of such notice transfer their affected Shares to a person qualified to own them or submit a written request for their redemption to the Administrator or establish to the satisfaction of the Company (whose judgement is final and binding) that he or the beneficial owner is qualified and entitled to own the affected Shares, he shall be deemed upon the expiry of that 30 day period to have given a request in writing for the redemption or cancellation (at the discretion of the Company) of all the affected Shares.

A Shareholder who becomes aware that he is holding or owns affected Shares shall immediately, unless he has already received a notice as set out above, either transfer all of their affected Shares to a person qualified to own them or submit a request in writing to the Administrator for the redemption of all their affected Shares.

Where a request in writing is given or deemed to be given for the redemption of affected Shares, such redemption will (if effected) be effected in the same manner as provided for in redemption of Shares as set out under paragraph 3.2 above.

Subject to the Articles of Incorporation, the Company may defer redemptions on a particular Dealing Day to the next Dealing Day where the total value of requested redemptions exceeds 10% of the Fund's value. The Company will ensure the consistent treatment of all shareholders who have sought to redeem shares on any Dealing Day on which redemptions have been deferred. The Company will pro rate all such redemption requests to the stated level (i.e. 10% of the Fund's value) and will defer the remainder to the next Dealing Day (subject to sufficient liquidity being raised).

The Company will ensure that all redemption requests relating to an earlier Dealing Day are completed before those relating to a later Dealing Day are considered.

3.9 Issue of Shares in Exchange for In Specie Assets

The Company may issue Shares in exchange for assets other than cash, but will only do so in accordance with the Regulations, in particular in accordance with the obligation to deliver a valuation report from an auditor (*réviseur d'entreprises agréé*), provided that the Company will not issue Shares in any Fund in exchange for assets the holding of which would be inconsistent with the investment objective or policy of that Fund as set out in Appendix I. Any costs incurred in connection with a contribution in specie will be borne by the relevant investor.

3.10 In Specie Redemptions

If a Shareholder requests the redemption of Shares the Company may, at the request of the Shareholder, make a distribution in kind of securities of the relevant Fund to that Shareholder in lieu of paying to that Shareholder redemption proceeds in cash, to the extent such a transaction is not detrimental to the best interests of the remaining Shareholders of the relevant Fund. Such redemption will be effected at the applicable redemption price of the relevant Class which the Shareholder is redeeming, and thus will constitute a pro rata portion of the Fund's assets attributable in that Class in terms of value. The assets to be transferred to such Shareholder shall be determined by (or on behalf of) the Management Company and the Investment Manager, with regard to the practicality of transferring the assets and to the interests of the Fund and continuing participants therein and to the Shareholder. The selection, valuation and transfer of assets shall be subject to the review and approval of the Auditor. The costs of such redemption in kind, in particular the costs of the special audit report, will be borne by the Shareholder requesting the redemption in kind or by a third party, but will not be borne by the Fund unless the Board considers that the redemption in kind is in the interest of the Fund or made to protect the interests of the Fund.

3.11 Suspension of Dealings in the Company or a Fund

The Company or the Management Company may at any time and from time to time temporarily suspend the issue, cancellation, sale and redemption of Shares in any or all of the Funds, where, due to exceptional circumstances as set out in Section 4.7 below, it is

in the interests of the Shareholders in the relevant Fund or Funds.

The Company and the Management Company must ensure that the suspension is only allowed to continue for as long as is justified having regard to the interests of Shareholders.

The Company or the Management Company (as appropriate) will immediately inform the CSSF of the suspension and the reasons for it and will follow this up as soon as practicable with written confirmation of the suspension and the reasons for it to the CSSF and the regulator in each EEA State where the relevant Fund is offered for sale.

Any such suspension may be notified by the Company or the Management Company in such manner as it may deem appropriate to the persons likely to be affected thereby. Notice will likewise be given to any applicant or Shareholder as the case may be applying for purchase, conversion or redemption of Shares in the Fund(s) concerned.

During a period of suspension, a Shareholder may withdraw their request in respect of any Shares not redeemed or converted, by notice in writing received before the end of such period.

The Company may agree during the suspension to deal in Shares in which case all deals accepted during and outstanding prior to the suspension will be undertaken at a price calculated at the first Valuation Point after the restart of dealings in Shares.

3.12 Governing Law

All deals in Shares are governed by the laws of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg.

4. VALUATION OF THE COMPANY

4.1 General

The Board determines the principles of the calculation of the price or Net Asset Value of the Shares, which is implemented on a forward basis. This means that it is not possible to know in advance the Net Asset Value per Share at which Shares will be bought or sold (exclusive of any fees).

There is only a single price for Shares. The price of a Share will be calculated by the Administrator by reference to the Net Asset Value of the Fund to which it relates. It will be calculated by dividing the Net Asset Value attributable to each Share Class in each Fund, being the proportionate value of its assets less its liabilities, at each Valuation Point by the number of Shares of such Class then in issue at such Valuation Point. The resulting sum shall be rounded down to the nearest two decimal places. The Net Asset Value per Share of a Fund is currently calculated on each Dealing Day at the Valuation Point of the Fund. For details of the Valuation Point of a Fund please see Appendix I.

The Net Asset Value per Share of each Class in each Fund will be calculated in the currency of denomination of the relevant Class. The Net Asset Value of each Fund shall be calculated and expressed in the Base Currency of such Fund.

The Administrator will, upon completion of each valuation, notify the Company and the Management Company of the price of Shares, of each Class of each Fund and the amount of any dilution adjustment made in respect of any purchase or redemption of Shares.

The Administrator may at any time during a Business Day if it considers it desirable to do so (or at the request of the Management Company or the Company) carry out an additional valuation and may use the price obtained at such additional valuation point as the price for the day. The Administrator shall inform the Company and the Management Company of any decision to carry out any such additional valuation. Valuations may be carried out for effecting a scheme of amalgamation or reconstruction, which do not create a Valuation Point for the purposes of dealing.

Where permitted and subject to the Regulations, the Company may, in certain circumstances (for example where a significant event has occurred since the closure of a market) substitute a price with a more appropriate price which in its opinion reflects a fair and reasonable price for that investment.

4.2 Calculation of the Net Asset Value

The Net Asset Value of the Company or of a Fund (as the case may be) shall be the value of its assets less the value of its liabilities determined in accordance with the following provisions:

- 4.2.1 All the assets (including receivables) is to be included, subject to the following provisions.
- 4.2.2 Property which is not cash (or other assets dealt with in paragraphs 4.2.2.6 or below) shall be valued as follows and the prices used shall (subject as follows) be

the most recent prices which it is practicable to obtain:

4.2.2.1 units or shares in a UCI or UCITS:

- (a) if a single price for buying and redeeming units or shares is quoted, at that price; or
- (b) if separate buying and selling prices are quoted, at the average of the two prices provided the buying price has been reduced by any initial charge included therein and the selling price has been increased by any exit or selling charge attributable thereto; or
- (c) if, in the opinion of the Administrator, the price obtained is unreliable or no recent traded price is available or if no recent price exists or if the most recent price available does not reflect the Administrator's best estimate of the value of the units or shares, at a value which, in the opinion of the Administrator (and subject to agreement of the Company and the Management Company), is fair and reasonable;

4.2.2.2 exchange-traded derivative contracts:

- (a) if a single price for buying and selling the exchange-traded derivative contract is quoted, at that price; or
- (b) if separate buying and selling prices are quoted, at the average of the two prices;
- 4.2.2.3 OTC derivative contracts shall be valued in accordance with the method of valuation as shall have been agreed between the Company, the Management Company and the Administrator;

4.2.2.4 Any other investment:

- (a) if a single price for buying and redeeming the security is quoted, at that price; or
- (b) if separate buying and redemption prices are quoted, at the average of the two prices; or
- (c) if, in the opinion of the Administrator, the price obtained is unreliable or no recent traded price is available or if no recent price exists or if the most recent price available does not reflect the Administrator's best estimate of the value of the security, at a value which in the opinion of the Administrator (and subject to agreement with the Company and the Management Company), is fair and reasonable;
- 4.2.2.5 Assets other than that described in paragraphs 4.2.2.1, 4.2.2.2, 4.2.2.3 and 4.2.2.4, above, at a value which, in the opinion of the

- Administrator (and subject to agreement with the Company and the Management Company), is fair and reasonable;
- 4.2.2.6 cash and amounts held in current and deposit accounts and in other time related deposits shall be valued at their nominal values.
- 4.2.3 In determining the value of an asset, all instructions given to issue or cancel Shares shall be assumed (unless the contrary is shown) to have been carried out and any cash payment made or received and all consequential action required by the Regulations or the Articles of Incorporation shall be assumed (unless the contrary has been shown) to have been taken.
- 4.2.4 Subject to paragraphs 4.2.5 and 4.2.6 below, agreements for the unconditional sale or purchase of assets which are in existence but uncompleted shall be assumed to have been completed and all consequential action required to have been taken. Such unconditional agreements need not be taken into account if made shortly before the valuation takes place and if, in the opinion of the Administrator (and subject to agreement with the Company and the Management Company), their omission will not materially affect the final net asset amount.
- 4.2.5 Futures or contracts for differences which are not yet due to be performed and unexpired and unexercised written or purchased options shall not be included under paragraph 4.2.4 above.
- 4.2.6 All agreements are to be included under paragraph 4.2.4 above which are, or ought reasonably to have been, known to the person valuing the property assuming that all other persons in the employment of the Administrator take all reasonable steps to inform the Administrator immediately of the making of any agreement.
- 4.2.7 Deduct an estimated amount for anticipated tax liabilities (on unrealised capital gains where the liabilities have accrued and are payable out of the Company or the Fund; on realised capital gains in respect of previously completed and current accounting periods; and on income where liabilities have accrued) including (as applicable and without limitation) capital gains tax, income tax, corporation tax, VAT, stamp duty, stamp duty reserve tax and any foreign taxes or duty.
- 4.2.8 Deduct the principal amount of any outstanding borrowings whenever repayable and any accrued but unpaid interest on borrowings.
- 4.2.9 Add an estimated amount for accrued claims for tax of whatever nature which may be recoverable.
- 4.2.10 Add any other credits or amounts due to be paid into the Company or the Fund.
- 4.2.11 Currencies or values in currencies other than Euro shall be converted at the relevant Valuation Point at a rate of exchange that is not likely to result in any material prejudice to the interests of Shareholders or potential Shareholders.
- 4.2.12 Add a sum representing any interest or any income accrued due or deemed to

have accrued but not received and any stamp duty reserve tax provision anticipated to be received.

4.3 Price per Share in each Fund and each Class

Each allocation of income made in respect of any Fund at a time when more than one Class is in issue in respect of that Fund shall be done by reference to the NAV of the Class in question, calculated in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation.

4.4 Fair Value Pricing

- 4.4.1 Where the Management Company has reasonable grounds to believe that:
 - 4.4.1.1 no reliable price exists for a security (including a unit/share in a collective investment scheme) at a Valuation Point; or
 - 4.4.1.2 the most recent price available does not reflect the Management Company's best estimate of the value of the security (including a unit/share in a UCI or UCITS) at the Valuation Point;

the Management Company (subject to agreement with the Company) can value an investment at a price which, in its opinion, reflects a fair and reasonable price for that investment (the fair value price).

- 4.4.2 The circumstances which may give rise to a fair value price being used include:
 - 4.4.2.1 no recent trade in the security concerned; or
 - 4.4.2.2 suspension of dealings in an underlying UCI or UCITS; or
 - 4.4.2.3 the occurrence of a significant event since the most recent closure of the market where the price of the security is taken.
- 4.4.3 In determining whether to use such a fair value price, consideration will be given, but need not be limited to:
 - 4.4.3.1 the type of authorised fund concerned;
 - 4.4.3.2 the securities involved;
 - 4.4.3.3 whether the underlying UCIs or UCITS may already have applied fair value pricing;
 - 4.4.3.4 the basis and reliability of the alternative price used; and
 - 4.4.3.5 the policy on the valuation of assets as disclosed in this Prospectus.

4.5 **Pricing Basis**

The Company deals on a forward pricing basis. A forward price is the price calculated at the next Valuation Point after the purchase or redemption is deemed to be accepted by the Company.

4.6 **Publication of Prices**

The Net Asset Value per Share of each Class within each Fund is made public at the registered office of the Company. The prices of all Share Classes are also available at http://www.foresightgroup.eu/foresight-sicav/.

The prices of Shares may also be obtained by contacting the Administrator by email to DealingLux@apexfunds.lu. As the Company deals on a forward pricing basis, the price that appears in these sources will not necessarily be the same as the one at which investors can currently deal. The Company may also, at its sole discretion, decide to publish certain Share prices on third party websites or publications but the Company does not accept responsibility for the accuracy of the prices published in, or for the non-publication of prices by, these sources for reasons beyond the control of the Company.

4.7 Suspension of the Calculation of Net Asset Value

The Board may suspend the calculation of the Net Asset Value of any Share Class in any Fund and the issue, redemption of Shares of any Share Class in such Fund, as well as the right to convert or switch Shares of any Share Class in any Fund into Shares of another Share Class of the same Fund or any other Fund:

- 4.7.1 during any period when any of the principal stock exchanges or any other regulated market on which any substantial portion of the Fund's investments of the relevant Fund for the time being are quoted, is closed other than for ordinary holidays, or during which dealings are restricted or suspended; or
- 4.7.2 during the existence of any state of affairs which constitutes an emergency as a result of which disposal or valuation of investments of the relevant Fund by the Company is impracticable; or
- 4.7.3 during any breakdown in the means of communication normally employed in determining the price or value of any of the Company's investments or the current prices or values on any market or stock exchange; or
- 4.7.4 during any period when the Company is unable to repatriate funds for the purpose of making payments on the redemption of such Shares or during which any transfer of funds involved in the realisation or acquisition of investments or payments due on redemption of such Shares cannot in the opinion of the Board be effected at normal rates of exchange; or
- 4.7.5 if the Company or a Fund is being or may be wound-up, liquidated, dissolved or merged (or whenever it absorbs another company or Fund) on or following the date on which notice is given of the meeting of Shareholders at which a resolution to wind up, liquidate, dissolve, merge or absorb the Company or a Fund is proposed; or
- 4.7.6 if the Board has determined that there has been a material change in the valuations of a substantial proportion of the investments of the Company

- attributable to a particular Fund in the preparation or use of a valuation or the carrying out of a later or subsequent valuation; or
- 4.7.7 if, for any other reason, the prices of any investments owned by the Company attributable to a particular Fund cannot promptly or accurately be ascertained.
- 4.7.8 where, in the opinion of the Board, circumstances which are beyond the control of the Board make it impracticable or unfair vis-à-vis the Shareholders to continue dealing in Shares.

The suspension of the calculation of the Net Asset Value of any Fund or Share Class shall not affect the valuation of other Funds or Share Classes, unless these Funds or Share Classes are also affected.

The Company or the Management Company (as appropriate) will immediately inform the CSSF of the suspension and the reasons for it and will follow this up as soon as practicable with written confirmation of the suspension and the reasons for it to the CSSF and the regulator in each EEA State where the relevant Fund is offered for sale.

Any such suspension may be notified by the Company or the Management Company in such manner as it may deem appropriate to the persons likely to be affected thereby. Notice will likewise be given to any applicant or Shareholder as the case may be applying for purchase, conversion or redemption of Shares in the Fund(s) concerned.

During a period of suspension, a Shareholder may withdraw their request in respect of any Shares not redeemed or converted, by notice in writing received before the end of such period.

5. RISK FACTORS

Potential investors should consider the below risk factors before investing in the Company (or, in the case of specific risks applying to specific Funds, in those Funds). This list must not be taken to be comprehensive as there may be new risks that arise in the future which could not have been anticipated in advance. Also, the risk factors listed will apply to different Funds to different degrees, and for a given Fund this degree could increase or reduce through time.

An investment in a Fund carries substantial risks and is suitable only for investors who accept those risks, can assume the risk of losing their entire investment and who understand that there is no recourse other than to the assets of the relevant Fund. The investments to be made by a Fund are speculative by nature and there is a possibility of partial or total loss of invested capital. Investors should not subscribe/commit to subscribe or invest in a Fund unless they can readily bear the consequences of such loss.

5.1 General

Past performance is not a guide to future performance.

Attention should be drawn to the fact that the Net Asset Value can go down as well as up. An investor may not get back the initially invested amount. There can be no assurance that any appreciation in the value of investments will occur. The value of investments and the income derived from them may fall as well as rise and investors may not recoup the original amount they invest in the Company. There is no certainty that the investment objective of the Funds will actually be achieved and no warranty or representation is given to this effect. The level of any yield for a Fund may be subject to fluctuations and is not guaranteed. There will be a variation in performance between Funds with similar objectives due to the different assets selected.

The entire market of a particular asset class or geographical sector may fall, having a more pronounced effect on Funds heavily invested in that asset class or region.

5.2 Market Risk

The investments of the Company are subject to normal market fluctuations and other risks inherent in investing in securities. Investors may experience losses due to changes in the level of one or more market prices, rates, indices, or other market factors. Sources of market risk include, but are not limited to, recessions, political turmoil, changes in monetary policies etc.

5.3 Effect of Initial Charge or Redemption Charge

Where an initial charge or redemption charge is imposed, an investor who realises their Shares after a short period may not (even in the absence of a fall in the value of the relevant investments) realise the amount originally invested.

In particular, where a redemption charge is payable, investors should note that the percentage rate at which the redemption charge is calculated is based on the market value rather than the initial value of the Shares. If the market value of the Shares has increased the redemption charge will show a corresponding increase.

The Shares therefore should be viewed as medium to long term investments.

5.4 Dilution Adjustment

A Fund may suffer a reduction in its Net Asset Value due to dealing costs incurred when buying and selling investments. To offset this dilution effect the Company may apply a dilution adjustment to the price payable on the purchase or redemption of its Shares. Where a dilution adjustment is not applied, the Fund in question may incur dilution which may constrain capital growth.

5.5 Charges to Capital

Where the investment objective of a Fund is to treat the generation of income as a higher priority than capital growth, or the generation of income and capital growth have equal priority, all or part of the Management Company's and the Investment Manager's fees, as well as other expenses, may be charged against capital instead of against income. This treatment of certain fee and other expenses will increase the amount of income (which may be taxable) available for distribution to Shareholders in the Fund concerned but may constrain capital growth. Currently, the Fund deducts expenses from capital.

5.6 Suspension of Dealings in Shares

Investors are reminded that in certain circumstances their right to redeem Shares (including a redemption by way of switching) may be suspended (see 'Suspension of dealings in the Company or a Fund' at paragraph 3.11 of Section 3).

5.7 Pricing and Liquidity

Where a Fund has exposure to alternative asset classes there is a risk that the price at which an asset is valued may not be realisable in the event of sale. This could be due to a mis-estimation of the asset's value or due to a lack of liquidity in the relevant market. As a result, at times, the Company may have to delay acting on instructions to sell investments, and the proceeds on redemption may be materially less than the value implied by the Fund's price.

5.8 Currency exchange rates

Currency fluctuations may adversely affect the value of a Fund's investments and, depending on an investor's currency of reference, currency fluctuations may adversely affect the value of an investment in Shares.

Certain Share Classes may be denominated in a currency other than the Base Currency of the Company. Changes in foreign currency exchange rates between the Base Currency of the Company and the currency in which a Share Classes are denominated will cause the value of Shares held in Funds to differ. Although the use of derivatives is not currently intended by the Company, in the event that the relevant Fund utilises derivatives to hedge its Net Asset Value against currency fluctuations, there can be no assurance that such transactions will be effective or beneficial.

5.9 Liabilities of the Company and the Funds

As explained in paragraph 2.2.1 of Section 2, under the 2010 Law each Fund is a segregated portfolio of assets and those assets can only be used to meet the liabilities of, or claims against, that Fund. Whilst the provisions of the 2010 Law provide for segregated liability between Funds, the concept of segregated liability is relatively new in certain jurisdictions. Accordingly, where claims are brought by local creditors in foreign courts or under foreign law contracts, it is not yet known whether a foreign court would give effect to the segregated liability and cross-investment provisions contained in the 2010 Law. Therefore, it is not possible to be certain that the assets of a Fund will always be completely insulated from the liabilities of another Fund of the Company in every circumstance.

5.10 Infrastructure Company Risk

Infrastructure companies may be subject to a variety of factors that may adversely affect their business or operations, including high interest costs in connection with capital construction programmes, high leverage, costs associated with environmental and other regulations, the effects of economic slowdown, surplus capacity, increased competition from other providers of services, uncertainties concerning the availability of fuel at reasonable prices, the effects of energy conservation policies and other factors. Infrastructure companies also may be affected by or subject to:

- (i) regulation by various government authorities, including rate regulation;
- (ii) service interruption due to environmental, operational or other factors;
- (iii) the imposition of special tariffs and changes in tax laws, regulatory policies and accounting standards;
- (iv) creditworthiness of counterparties and such counterparties' ability to perform and fulfill their obligations; and
- (v) general changes in market sentiment towards infrastructure and utilities assets.

5.11 Liquidity

Depending on the types of assets a Fund invests in there may be occasions where there is an increased risk that a position cannot be liquidated in a timely manner at a reasonable price. As a result, the Company may not be able to meet redemption requests and/or may not be able to sell assets at levels close to current valuation price.

5.12 Custody

There may be a risk of loss where the assets of a Fund are held in custody that could result from the insolvency, negligence or fraudulent action of a custodian or sub-custodian.

5.13 Counterparty and Settlement

The Company will be exposed to a credit risk on parties with whom it trades and will also bear the risk of settlement default.

5.14 Inflation and Interest Rates

The real value of any returns that an investor may receive from a Fund could be affected by interest rates and inflation over time.

5.15 Derivatives and Volatility

The 2010 Law permits the Company to use certain techniques when investing in derivatives in order to manage a Fund's exposure to particular counterparties and in relation to the use of collateral to reduce overall exposure to over-the-counter (**OTC**) derivatives; for example a Fund may take collateral from counterparties with whom they have an OTC derivative position and use that collateral to net off against the exposure they have to the counterparty under that OTC derivative position, for the purposes of complying with counterparty spread limits. A Fund may also be permitted to use derivatives to effectively short sell (agree to deliver the relevant asset without holding it in the scheme) under certain conditions.

Derivatives are not currently intended to be used in the Funds

5.16 Investing in other UCIs or UCITS

A Fund may invest in other regulated UCIs or UCITS. As an investor in another UCI or UCITS, the Fund will bear, along with the other investors, its portion of the expenses of the other UCI or UCITS, including management, performance and/or other fees. These fees will be in addition to the management fees and other expenses which the Fund bears directly with its own operations.

5.17 Focused Portfolio

An average UCITS sub-fund will invest in 80 to 150 different companies that may be spread across multiple market sectors. By comparison, the Foresight Global Real Infrastructure (Lux) Fund's portfolio will be focused only on equities within the UK and global infrastructure sector only. By focusing on one specific sector, the Fund will have a less diverse portfolio than the average UCITS sub-fund with approximately 30 or more investments. Whilst increasing the potential reward, the nature of a more focused portfolio can increase risk. As such, the returns may be more volatile and will be impacted more by fluctuations in the value of underlying stocks in the UK and global infrastructure sectors.

5.18 Tax Risk

The rates of, and any relief from, taxation may change over time. Tax information is set out later in the document. If you have any doubts about your tax position, you should seek professional advice.

Tax and law practice in certain countries into which the Company invests or may invest in the future on behalf of a Fund may not be clearly established, may be subject to change or may be subject to change with retrospective effect. It is possible therefore that additional taxation applies in such countries that were not anticipated either at the date of this document or when investments were made, valued or disposed of.

5.19 Legal and Regulatory

The Fund is domiciled in Luxembourg and investors should note that all the regulatory protections provided by their local regulatory authorities may not apply. Additionally, some of the Funds may be registered in non-EU jurisdictions for marketing purposes and, as a result, may be subject, without any notice to the Shareholders in the Funds concerned, to more restrictive regulatory regimes.

Legal and regulatory changes could adversely affect the Company or a Fund. Regulation of investment vehicles such as the Company is subject to change, the effects of which are impossible to determine. Regulators are authorised to take extraordinary actions in the event of market emergencies. The effect of any future regulatory action on the Company or a Fund could be substantial and adverse.

5.20 Risks Associated with the UK Leaving the European Union

The full extent of the political, economic and legal consequences of UK having left the European Union are not yet known and may not be known for some time. It is not clear whether and to what extent this may cause general market disruption and/or make it more difficult for the Investment Manager to access markets and opportunities, attract and retain employees or enter into agreements on its own behalf or on behalf of the Funds, which could have an adverse effect on the Company or a Fund. In particular, there is a risk that financial services rules and regulations could be unilaterally amended with effect that the Investment Manager could be restricted or prohibited from offering services to professional clients in the European Union under the third country regime.

5.21 Cyber

The Company and its service providers are susceptible to cyber security risks that include, among other things, theft, unauthorised monitoring, release, misuse, loss, destruction or corruption of confidential and highly restricted data; denial of service attacks; unauthorised access to relevant systems, compromises to networks or devices that the Company and its service providers use to service the Company's operations; or operational disruption or failures in the physical infrastructure or operating systems that support the Company and its service providers. Such occurrences may adversely impact the Company or a Fund potentially resulting in, among other things, financial losses; the inability of Shareholders to transact business and the Company to process transactions; inability to calculate the Fund's NAV; violations of applicable privacy and other laws; regulatory fines, penalties, reputational damage, reimbursement or other compensation costs; and/or additional compliance costs. In addition, cyber security risks may also impact issuers of securities in which the Company invests, which may cause the Company's investments in such issuers to lose value.

5.22 Epidemic and Pandemic Risk

An epidemic is the appearance of a particular disease in a large number of people at the same time. A pandemic occurs when an epidemic spreads in an entire area or occurs in an exceptionally high proportion of the population, thereby reaching national or global levels. The outbreak of an epidemic or a pandemic, together with any restrictions imposed as a

result, may cause general market disruption and/or have a negative impact on the economy and business activity globally. This could adversely affect the performance of the Company or a Fund and/or make it more difficult for the Investment Manager to access markets and opportunities.

5.23 Insolvency

If a third party becomes insolvent, neither the Company, the Management Company nor the Investment Manager will be liable to Shareholders.

5.24 Sustainability Risks

A Fund may have the objective of making sustainable investments and/or have environmental and/or social characteristics, which they achieve by applying sustainability criteria to the selection of investments. Such Fund may have limited exposure to some companies, industries or sectors as a result and may forego certain investment opportunities, or dispose of certain holdings, that do not align with their sustainability criteria. A sustainable Fund may underperform other funds that do not apply similar criteria to their investments. As investors may differ in their views of what constitutes a sustainable investment, such a Fund may also invest in companies that do not reflect the beliefs and values of any particular Investor.

The Investment Manager takes sustainability risks into account in the management of a Fund. A sustainability risk is an environmental, social or governance event or condition that, if it occurs, could cause an actual or a potential material negative impact on the value of an investment and the returns of a Fund.

Where, for example, a Fund is invested in part or whole in diversified developed markets securities and/or in securities of global infrastructure companies:

- Environmental risks include but are not limited to potential damage to physical
 infrastructure assets resulting from extreme weather events and climate change, the
 ability of companies to mitigate and adapt to climate change and the potential for higher
 carbon prices, exposure to increasing water scarcity and potential for higher water
 prices, waste management challenges, and impact on global and local ecosystems;
- Social risks include but are not limited to health and safety and employee welfare product safety, supply chain management and labour standards, health and safety and human rights, employee welfare, cyber risks and the potential theft of customer data, data & privacy concerns and increasing technological regulation;
- Governance risks include board composition (including lack of gender diversity), effectiveness and quality of management, management incentives and alignment of management with shareholders.

There is a lack of standardised taxonomy of ESG evaluation methodology and the way in which different funds will apply ESG criteria may vary, as there are not yet commonly agreed principles and metrics for assessing the sustainable characteristics of investments made by funds. In evaluating a security based on sustainable characteristics, the Investment Manager is dependent upon information and data sources provided by internal

research teams and complemented by external ESG rating providers, which may be incomplete, inaccurate or unavailable. Consequently, there is a risk that the Investment Manager may incorrectly assess a security or issuer. Evaluation of sustainable characteristics of the securities and selection of such securities may involve the Investment Manager's subjective judgment. As a result, there is a risk that the relevant sustainable characteristics may not be applied correctly or that a Fund could have indirect exposure to issuers who do not meet the relevant sustainable characteristics applied by a Fund. In the event that the sustainable characteristics of a security held by a Fund change, resulting in the Investment Manager having to sell the security, neither the Company, the Management Company nor the Investment Manager accept liability in relation to such change. No representation nor warranty is made with respect to the fairness, accuracy or completeness of such sustainable characteristics and the status of a security's sustainable characteristics can change over time.

The regulatory framework applying to sustainable products and sustainable investing is rapidly evolving. As such, the objectives and investments of a Fund may be subject to change over time in order to comply with new requirements or applicable regulatory guidance.

6. GOVERNANCE, MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION

6.1 The Board

The Board has the sole exclusive power to administer and manage the Company and to determine the investment objective, investment policy and investment powers and restrictions and the course of conduct of the management and business affairs of the Company and the Funds, in compliance with the Articles of Incorporation, the Prospectus and the Regulations.

Pursuant to the Articles of Incorporation, the Board shall be vested with the broadest powers to perform all acts of administration and disposition in the Fund's interest. All powers not expressly reserved by law or the Articles of Incorporation to a General Meeting of the Shareholders will fall within the competence of the Board.

The Board is also responsible for the selection and appointment of the Management Company and the Depositary, and, together with the Management Company as the case may be, for the selection and appointment of the Administrator, the Global Distributor and the Investment Manager.

The Board will at all times be comprised of a minimum of 3 directors (each a **Director**).

As of the date of the present Prospectus, the Board is comprised of the following persons:

• Chairman: Jasper Jansen

• Director: Adela Baho

• Director: Nick Scullion

• Director: Mark Brennan

There are no existing or proposed service contracts between any of the Directors and the Company or the Management Company. Each of the Directors shall be entitled to remuneration for their directorship services at a rate determined by the Shareholders from time to time in the General Meetings. In addition, each Director may be reimbursed for their reasonable expenses incurred while attending meetings of the Board or General Meetings of the Company.

6.2 Management Company

The Company has appointed FundRock Management Company S.A. as the management company of the Fund within the meaning of the 2010 Law, pursuant to a management agreement entered into between the Company and the Management Company with effect as of 11 October 2021, as may be amended from time to time (Management Agreement).

The Management Company was incorporated for an unlimited period on 10 November 2004 in the form of a *société anonyme* in Luxembourg under the name of 'RBS (Luxembourg) S.A.'. With effect from 31 December 2015, it changed its name to FundRock Management Company S.A. It is authorised and regulated by the CSSF as (i) a management company

subject to Chapter 15 of the Law of 2010, and (ii) as alternative investment fund manager regulated under Chapter 2 of the law of 12 July 2013 on alternative investment funds managers, as amended from time to time. It has a subscribed and paid-up capital of EUR 10,000,000. It has its registered office in Luxembourg at 33, rue de Gasperich, L-5826 Hesperange, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg. The articles of incorporation of the Management Company were published in published in the 'Mémorial' of 6 December 2004 Nr. 1245. The last amendment of the articles was published on 31 March 2016. The accounts of the Management Company are audited by an independent authorised auditor, Deloitte S.à r.l.

In accordance with the 2010 Law, the Management Company designated by the Company shall exercise the following functions:

- (i) investment management;
- (ii) administration; and
- (iii) marketing.

The Management Company shall be entitled to delegate all or part of the above duties to any person or entity, which it will consider appropriate, as further detailed below.

The Management Company will be liable to the Company for losses suffered by the Company as a result of the Management Company's negligent or intentional failure to properly fulfil its obligations pursuant to the Management Agreement and the UCITS Directive.

In consideration for the services rendered by the Management Company to the benefit of the relevant Fund, the Management Company shall be entitled to those management company fees as detailed in Section 7 of this document and in Appendix I in respect of the relevant Fund.

The Management Company Agreement may be terminated by either party with or without cause at any time subject to giving the other party at least 90 days' prior written notice of termination.

The Management Company has established and applies a remuneration policy in accordance with principles laid out under the UCITS Directive and any related legal and regulatory provisions applicable in Luxembourg.

The remuneration policy is aligned with the business strategy, objectives, values and interests of the Management Company and the UCITS that it manages and of the investors in such UCITS, and which includes, inter alia, measures to avoid conflicts of interest; and it is consistent with and promotes sound and effective risk management and does not encourage risk taking which is inconsistent with the risk profiles, rules or instruments of incorporation of the UCITS that the Management Company manages.

As an independent management company relying on a full-delegation model (i.e. delegation of the collective portfolio management function), the Management Company ensures that its remuneration policy adequately reflects the predominance of its oversight activity within its core activities. As such, it should be noted that the Management

Company's employees who are identified as risk-takers in accordance with the UCITS Directive are not remunerated based on the performance of the UCITS under management.

The Management Company's remuneration policy, in a multi-year framework, ensures a balanced regime where remuneration both drives and rewards the performance of its employees in a measured, fair and well-thought-out fashion, which relies on the following principles:

- (a) Identification of the persons responsible for awarding remuneration and benefits (under the supervision of the remuneration committee and subject to the control of an independent internal audit committee);
- (b) Identification of the functions performed within the Management Company which may impact the performance of the UCITS under management;
- (c) Calculation of remuneration and benefits based on the combination of individual and company's performance assessment;
- (d) Determination of a balanced remuneration (fixed and variable);
- (e) Implementation of an appropriate retention policy with regards to financial instruments used as variable remuneration;
- (f) Deferral of variable remuneration over three-year periods;

Implementation of control procedures/adequate contractual arrangements on the remuneration guidelines set up by the Management Company's respective portfolio management delegates.

It should be noted that the Management Company's remuneration policy may be subject to certain amendments and/or adjustments.

Details of the up-to-date remuneration policy of the Management Company, including a description of how remuneration and benefits are calculated and the identity of persons responsible for awarding the remuneration and benefits, including the composition of the remuneration committee, are available at: https://www.fundrock.com/pdf/Fundrock_Remuneration_policy.pdf. A paper version of this remuneration policy is made available free of charge to investors upon request at the Management Company's registered office.

The Management Company acts also as management company for other investment funds and will in the future be appointed to act for other investment funds as their management company. The list of the funds managed by the Management Company may be obtained, on simple request, at the registered office of the Management Company. Further details of the Management Company's conflicts of interest policy are available at: https://www.fundrock.com/conflict-of-interest/

6.3 The Investment Manager

The Management Company has appointed Foresight Group LLP as the investment manager in respect of the Company and the Fund(s) pursuant to a tri-partite investment

management agreement entered into between the Management Company, the Company and the Investment Manager with effect as of 11 October 2021, as may be amended from time to time (**Investment Management Agreement**).

The Investment Manager is organised under the laws of England and Wales as a limited liability partnership. The Investment Manager's registered office is at The Shard, 32 London Bridge Street, London, SE1 9SG. The principal activity of the Investment Manager is the provision of investment management services.

It is authorised by the UK Financial Conduct Authority (**FCA**), under FCA registration number 198020, with the necessary scope of permissions to act as investment manager pursuant to the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (as amended). In particular, the Investment Manager has authorisation for the following activities:

- (i) advising on investments (except on Pension Transfers and Pension Opt Outs);
- (ii) arranging (bringing about) deals in investments;
- (iii) making arrangements with a view to transactions in investments; and
- (iv) managing investments.

The Investment Manager will provide the following services to the Management Company:

- (a) reception and transmission of orders in relation to one or more financial instruments;
- (b) investment management; and
- (c) investment advice.

The Investment Manager has been appointed to provide day-to-day management in respect of the investment and re-investment of the net assets of all Funds.

Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, the Investment Manager is entitled to delegate (subject to the Company and the Management Company's prior written approval and, where relevant, the CSSF), all or part of the performance of its duties to one or more sub-investment managers, under its ultimate responsibility, and/or to appoint one or more investment advisors in respect of any Fund.

The Investment Manager will be liable to the Company for losses suffered by the Company as a result of the Investment Manager's negligent or intentional failure to properly fulfil its obligations pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement.

In consideration for the services rendered by the Investment Manager to the benefit of the relevant Fund(s), the Investment Manager shall be entitled to those fees as detailed in Section 7 of this document and Appendix I in respect of the relevant Fund. Fees payable to the Investment Manager may include an annual investment management fee calculated as a percentage of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Fund and/or a performance fee based on the appreciation of the Net Asset Value per Share.

The Investment Management Agreement may be terminated by the Company, the Management Company or the Investment Manager at any time, subject to giving the other parties at least 90 days' prior written notice of termination.

6.4 The Depositary

Pursuant to a depositary and paying agent services agreement entered into with effect as of 11 October 2021 (the "**Depositary Agreement**"), Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (publ), Luxembourg Branch, registered with the Luxembourg trade and companies register under n° B39819 and having its place of business at 4 rue Peternelchen, L-2370 Howald, Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg, has been appointed as depositary of the Company. The Depositary will also provide paying agent services to the Company.

The Depositary is a branch of Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (publ), a credit institution incorporated under and pursuant to the laws of Sweden, subject to the prudential supervision of the Swedish Financial Supervisory Authority, Finansinspektionen. The Depositary is further supervised by the CSSF, in its role as host member state authority.

The Depositary has been appointed for the safe-keeping of the assets of the Company which comprises the custody of financial instruments, the record keeping and verification of ownership of other assets of the Company as well as the effective and proper monitoring of the Company's cash flows in accordance with the provisions of the 2010 Law and the Depositary Agreement.

In addition, the Depositary shall also ensure that:

- (i) the sale, issue, repurchase, redemption and cancellation of Shares are carried out in accordance with Luxembourg law and the Articles of Incorporation;
- (ii) the value of the Shares is calculated in accordance with Luxembourg law and the Articles of Incorporation;
- (iii) the instructions of the Management Company are carried out, unless they conflict with applicable Luxembourg law and/or the Articles of Incorporation;
- (iv) in transactions involving the Company's assets any consideration is remitted to the Company within the usual time limits; and
- (v) the Company's incomes are applied in accordance with Luxembourg law and the Articles of Incorporation.

In carrying out its functions the Depositary acts honestly, fairly, professionally and independently and solely in the interest of the investors of the Company. The Depositary is on an ongoing basis analyzing, based on applicable laws and regulations potential conflicts of interests that may arise while carrying out its functions.

When performing its activities, the Depositary obtains information relating to funds which could theoretically be misused (and thus raise potential conflict of interests issues) in relation to e.g. the interests of other clients of the SEB Group, whether engaging in trading in the same securities or seeking other services, particularly in the area of offering services

competing with the interests of other counterparties used by the Company/fund managers, and the interests of the Depositary's employees in personal account dealings. Potential conflicts of interests in the SEB Group can be further exemplified as not market equivalent pricing of the depositories' services and the undue influence in the management and board of directors of the funds/fund managers by the Depositary, and vice versa.

Consequently, to mitigate the potential conflicts of interest, it has been ensured that the activities of a depositary function are physically, hierarchically and systematically separated from other functions of the Depositary in order to establish information firewalls. Moreover, the depositary function has a mandate and a veto to approve or decline fund clients independent of other functions and has its own committees for escalation of matters connected to its role as a depositary, where other functions with potentially conflicting interests are not represented.

For further details on management, monitoring and disclosure of potential conflicts of interest please contact Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (publ), Luxembourg Branch.

An up-to-date list of these delegates can be found on the following webpage: https://sebgroup.lu/globalcustodynetwork.

In compliance with the provisions of the Depositary Agreement and the 2010 Law, as amended from time to time, the Depositary may, subject to certain conditions and in order to effectively conduct its duties, delegate part or all of its safe-keeping duties in relation to financial instruments that can be held in custody, duly entrusted to the Depositary for custody purposes, and/or all or part of its duties regarding the record keeping and verification of ownership of other assets of the Company to one or more delegate(s), as they are appointed by the Depositary from time to time.

In consideration for the services rendered by the Depositary to the benefit of the relevant Fund(s), the Depositary shall be entitled to those fees as detailed in Section 7 of this document and Appendix I in respect of the relevant Fund.

The Depositary Agreement may be terminated by either the Company or the Depositary at any time, subject to giving the other party at least 90 days' prior written notice of termination.

6.5 The Domiciliary and Administrative Agent, Registrar and Transfer Agent

Pursuant to an agreement entered into with effect as of 11 October 2021 between Apex Fund Services S.A., the Management Company and the Company (**Central Administration Agreement**), the Management Company and the Company have appointed the Administrator, having its registered office at 3, rue Gabriel Lippmann, L-5365 Munsbach, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg as domiciliary and administrative agent, registrar and transfer agent.

The Administrator is responsible for the central administration of the Company and in particular for the processing of the issue, redemption and conversion of Shares, the determination of the net asset value of the Shares in each Sub-Fund and for the maintenance of accounting records.

The Administrator may from time to time, under its full responsibility, control and in compliance with any applicable regulation and at its own costs, enter into agreement with affiliated companies in view of delegating part of the activities covered by the Central Administration Agreement. The duties and responsibilities of the Administrator are not altered in any way by any delegation being in effect.

The Central Administration Agreement is governed by Luxembourg law and will remain in effect until such time as it is terminated in accordance with the provisions of the Central Administration Agreement. The Central Administration Agreement may be terminated by any of the parties thereto by giving to the other party a notice in writing specifying the date of such termination, which will be not less than three months after the date of service of such notice. The Central Administration Agreement may be terminated forthwith by either the Management Company or the Administrator giving notice in writing to the other party in the circumstances set out in the Central Administration Agreement. The Central Administration Agreement may also be terminated by the Management Company with immediate effect if this is deemed by the Management Company to be in the interest of the investors.

In consideration for the services rendered by the Administrator to the benefit of the relevant Fund(s), the Administrator shall be entitled to those fees as detailed in Section 7 of this document and Appendix I in respect of the relevant Fund.

Apex Fund Services S.A. is part of the Apex Group, a global provider of fund administration services with 40 offices across the globe, ISAE 3402/SSAE18 audited, independently owned with approximately US\$1 trillion under administration. Apex Group provides specialist fund administration, share registrar, corporate secretarial services and directors to funds and collective investment schemes globally.

6.6 The Global Distributor

The Management Company has appointed Foresight Group LLP to act as global distributor in respect of the Company and the Fund(s) pursuant to a tri-partite global distribution agreement entered into between the Management Company, the Company and the Global Distributor with effect as of 11 October 2021, as may be amended from time to time (Global Distribution Agreement).

The Global Distributor has been appointed to provide promotion, marketing, offer, distribution, sale and subscriptions into the Company in the respect of the Fund(s). The Global Distribution Agreement shall be subject to the provisions of anti-money laundering as further detailed in this Prospectus.

The Global Distributor may act as nominee for investors subscribing for Shares through their facilities. In such capacity, the Global Distributor shall effect subscriptions, redemptions and conversions in nominee name on behalf of individual investors, and request the registration of such operations on the Share records of the Fund in such investors' names. The Global Distributor shall maintain its own records and shall provide the investor with individualised information with regard to its shareholdings in the

Company. Except where local law or custom prescribes the practice, investors may invest directly in the Company and not avail themselves of a nominee service. Unless otherwise provided by local law, any Shareholders holding Shares in a nominee account with the Global Distributor has a direct claim to the particular Shares subscribed for on its behalf by its nominee.

In consideration for the services rendered by the Global Distributor to the benefit of the relevant Fund(s), the Global Distributor shall be entitled to those fees as detailed in Section 7 of this document and Appendix I in respect of the relevant Fund.

The Global Distributor may delegate all or part of the performance of its duties to one or more sub-distributors and/or placement agents, under its ultimate responsibility and at its own costs.

The Global Distribution Agreement may be terminated by the Company, the Management Company or the Global Distributor at any time, subject to giving the other parties at least 90 days' prior written notice of termination.

6.7 The Auditor

The Auditor is Deloitte Audit, whose address is at 20, boulevard de Kockelscheuer, L-1821 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg. The Auditor will fulfil all its duties as prescribed by the 2010 Law.

In consideration for the services rendered by the Auditor to the benefit of the relevant Fund(s), the Auditor shall be entitled to those fees as detailed in Section 7 of this document.

6.8 Risk Management

The Management Company will implement a risk management process for each Fund which enables it to monitor and measure at any time the risk of the positions and their contribution to the overall risk profile of each Fund in accordance with the UCITS Directive, CSSF Circular 11/512 (as amended by CSSF Circular 18/698) and any other applicable laws and CSSF circular. Further information relating the Management Company's risk management process for the Fund(s) is set out in Appendix II.

Upon request of an investor, the Management Company shall also provide supplementary information relating to the quantitative limits that apply in the risk management of each Fund, to the methods chosen to this end and to the recent evolution of the main risks and yields of the categories of instruments.

The Investment Manager's investment processes include the consideration sustainability risks alongside other factors in investment decision making. A sustainability risk is an environmental, social or governance event or condition that, if it occurs, could cause an actual or a potential material negative impact on the value of an investment and the returns of a Fund. Sustainability risks could arise within a particular business or externally, impacting multiple business. Sustainability risks that could negatively affect the value of a particular investment might include one or more of the examples set out in Section 5.25 above.

The Investment Manager will typically analyse potential investments by assessing (alongside other relevant considerations), for example, the overall costs and benefits to society and the environment that an issuer may generate or how the market value of an issuer may be influenced by individual sustainability risks such as a rise in carbon tax. The Investment Manager will also typically consider the relevant issuer's relationships with its key stakeholders – customers, employees, suppliers and regulators – including an assessment of whether those relationships are managed in a sustainable manner and, therefore, whether there are any material risks to the market value of the issuer.

More details on the management of sustainability risks and the Investment Manager's approach to sustainability are available on the Investment Manager's website https://www.foresightgroup.eu/responsible-investing. Please also refer to the risk factor entitled "Sustainability Risks" in Section 5.25.

6.9 Conflicts of Interests

The Management Company and the Investment Manager, and other companies within their respective groups may, from time to time, act as managers or investment managers/advisers to other funds or sub-funds which follow similar investment objectives to those of the Company and its Fund(s). It is therefore possible that the Management Company and/or the Investment Manager may in the course of their business have potential conflicts of interest with the Company or a particular Fund.

The Management Company and/or the Investment Manager will, however, have regard in such event to their obligations under the Management Agreement and Investment Management Agreement (respectively) and, in particular, to their obligation to act in the best interests of the Company so far as practicable, having regard to their obligations to other clients, when undertaking any investment business where potential conflicts of interest may arise.

For further details on the Management Company's or the Investment Manager's conflicts of interest policy please contact the Company.

The Depositary may act as the depositary of other investment companies and as trustee or custodian of other UCIs.

The Administrator may act as the domiciliary and administrative agent, registrar and transfer agent of other investment companies and UCIs.

The Global Distributor is the same entity as the Investment Manager. In respect of its capacity as global distributor, it and other companies within its group may act as a distributor of, and/or provide marketing services to, other investment companies and UCIs of which it and other companies within its group is the investment manager.

Each of the Directors is a director and/or employee of the Investment Manager (this being the same entity as the Global Distributor) and/or other companies within its group. Each Director may, therefore, be part of the team responsible for the provision of investment management services, investment advisory services and/or marketing/distribution services to other investment companies and UCIs of which the Investment Manager and

other companies within its group is the investment manager/adviser or a marketing/distribution agent.

7. FEES AND EXPENSES

7.1 Set-Up Costs

All costs and expenses related to the structuring, regulatory approval and launch of the Fund amounting to one hundred and twenty thousand Euro (EUR 120,000.-) were borne by the Company and allocated to the initial Fund, namely Foresight Global Real Infrastructure (Lux) Fund and will be amortised over a period of maximum five years.

Each new Fund created subsequently will bear its own set-up costs and expenses and such set-up costs and expenses will be written off over a period not exceeding five years.

7.2 Operating Costs

The Company's operating expenses include, among other things, taxes, expenses for legal and auditing services, costs of printing proxies, stock certificates, Shareholders' reports and notices, prospectuses and KIIDs and other promotional expenses, fees and charges of the Depositary and its correspondents, of the Administrator (acting in its various capacities), expenses of the issue and redemption of Shares, registration fees and expenses in various jurisdictions, listing fees, Directors fees, expenses of the Directors and officers of the Company relating to attendance at meetings of the Board and of the Shareholders of the Company, translation costs, accounting and pricing costs (including the calculation of NAV per share), insurance (such as D&O insurance cover), litigation and other extraordinary or non-recurring expenses, and all other expenses properly payable by the Company. The operating costs also include the fees payable to the Management Company and the Investment Manager, and the fees and expenses incurred in obtaining investment research, as applicable.

Certain Funds and Share Classes will also pay specific additional costs including, without limitation, any tax, including in particular, the Luxembourg subscription tax (*taxe d'abonnement*), and may incur additional custody fees applicable to investment in emerging markets, hedging expenses and the costs relating to subsidiaries, as further described in Appendix I as relevant for each Fund.

The Management Company may pay an amount of the fees and charges it receives to distributors, dealers or other entities that assist the Management Company in the performance of its duties or provide services, directly or indirectly to the Fund(s) or their Shareholders, provided such distributors, dealers or other entities are not prohibited from receiving any fees and commissions under applicable laws and regulations. Subject to the same conditions, as applicable, the Management Company may instruct the Company to pay a proportion of any fee, charge or cost directly out of the assets of the Company to any service providers. In such case the fee, charge or cost is reduced accordingly. Where required by applicable laws and regulations, (sub-)distributors shall inform their clients and any other applicable party about the nature and amount of any remuneration received.

To the extent permitted by applicable laws and regulations, the Management Company, the Investment Manager and/or the Global Distributor may choose to waive or rebate all of their fees and charges with respect to any Fund or Share Class or any portion thereof at their absolute discretion for an indefinite period.

All fees, charges and costs are payable calculated on the average daily net assets (before the deduction of any fees, charges and costs).

Each Fund bears its own costs and expenses of buying and selling portfolio securities and financial instruments, brokerage fees and commissions, interest or taxes payable, and other transaction related expenses. These transaction fees are accounted for on a cash basis and are paid when incurred or invoiced from the net assets of the Fund to which they are attributable. Transaction fees are allocated across each Fund's Share Classes.

The Company bears any extraordinary expenses including, without limitation, litigation expenses and the full amount of any tax, levy, duty or similar charge and any unforeseen charges imposed in the fund or its assets.

The Company is subject to charges and expenses. These charges and expenses may vary depending on, among other factors, the size of the assets of a Fund, the location where the investments are made, and the volume of investment transactions. In certain cases, these charges are calculated based on a reducing scale as the size of the assets increases and may be subject to temporary waivers, maximum limits or, in limited circumstances where the assets of a Fund are below a certain minimum threshold, minimum limits. Charges and expenses reduce the potential growth of your investment.

Further details regarding fees payable to the key service providers to the Company are set out below and in Appendix I in relation to the relevant Fund. Where applicable, the amounts of any minimum fees can be obtained at the registered office of the Fund.

It is not currently proposed to seek a listing for the Shares on any stock exchange, but if a listing is sought in the future the fees connected with the listing will be payable by the Company.

Expenses are allocated between capital and income in accordance with Luxembourg GAAP. Currently, the Company charges the Management Company and Investment Manager's fee, as well as other expenses, against capital.

7.3 Management Company Fees and Expenses

In payment for carrying out its duties and responsibilities the Management Company is entitled to an annual management charge, payable monthly in arrears by reference to the Net Asset Value of each relevant Fund on the immediately preceding Dealing Day in respect of the relevant month. The current annual management charges for the current Fund(s) (expressed as a percentage per annum of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Fund) are displayed below.

Fund	Net Asset Value	Percentage
Foresight Global Real	Up to 200 million Euro	0.04% (subject to a minimum
Infrastructure (Lux) Fund		fee of €48,000)
	Over 200 million Euro up	0.03%
	to 500 million Euro	
	Over 500 million Euro	0.02%

The minimum fee does not apply in the first six months from the launch date of the relevant Fund.

The current annual management charge rates are also set out in Appendix I.

Fees are exclusive of any value added tax or similar taxes, which if chargeable, shall be charged in addition at the appropriate rate.

The Management Company is also entitled to all reasonable out of pocket expenses incurred in the performance of its duties as set out above.

7.4 Depositary's Fee and Expenses

In carrying out its duties and responsibilities the Depositary is entitled to receive a custody fee paid out of the assets of each Fund determined as an annual percentage calculated per market on a monthly basis based on each Fund's Net Asset Value and paid monthly in arrears. The custody fee is subject to a monthly minimum fee of EUR 500.-

The Depositary will further receive out of the assets of each Fund a supervisory/depositary fee based on the relevant Fund's Net Asset Value paid monthly in arrears and subject to a monthly minimum fee of EUR 500.-

The maximum overall depositary fee (custody fee and supervisory/depositary fee) shall not exceed 0.15% of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Fund (excluding minimum fees).

The Depositary Fee does not cover operational costs such as costs of buying and selling securities, transaction fees and correspondent bank charges, such charges are paid separately by each Fund.

The current depositary fee rates are also set out in Appendix I.

Fees are exclusive of any value added tax or similar taxes, which if chargeable, shall be charged in addition at the appropriate rate.

The Depositary is also entitled to all reasonable out of pocket expenses incurred in the performance of its duties as set out above.

7.5 Investment Manager's Fees and Expenses

In payment for carrying out its duties and responsibilities the Investment Manager is entitled to an annual fee of 0.85% of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Fund, payable

monthly in arrears (calculated by reference to the Net Asset Value of each relevant Fund on the immediately preceding Dealing Day in respect of the relevant month).

The Investment Manager is also entitled to all reasonable out of pocket expenses incurred in the performance of its duties as set out above.

7.6 The Domiciliary and Administrative Agent, Registrar and Transfer Agent Fees and Expenses

In payment for carrying out its duties and responsibilities the Administrator is entitled to an annual fee, payable monthly in arrears by reference to the Net Asset Value of the Company on the immediately preceding Dealing Day in respect of the relevant month. The current administration fees for the current Fund(s) (expressed as a percentage per annum of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Fund) are displayed below.

Fund	Net Asset Value	Percentage
Foresight Global Real	Up to 200 million Euro	0.040% (subject to a minimum
Infrastructure (Lux) Fund		fee of €30,000)
	Over 200 million Euro up	0.035%
	to 500 million Euro	
	Over 500 million Euro	0.015%

The minimum fee does not apply in the first six months from the launch date of the relevant Fund.

The annual management charge rates shall increase by 3% per annum with effect as at 1 January of each applicable calendar year.

The Administrator will provide the Company with draft annual financial statements for a fee of \le 6,500 per annum and will provide domiciliation services to the Company for a fee of \le 3,000 per annum.

The Administrator is also entitled to all reasonable out of pocket expenses incurred in the performance of its duties as set out above.

7.7 Auditor Fees and Expenses

The Auditor will be remunerated for its services out of each Fund's assets in accordance with prevailing market practice in Luxembourg.

7.8 Allocation of Fees and Expenses between Funds

All the above fees and expenses will be charged to the Fund in respect of which they were incurred and within each Fund these will be allocated between Classes in accordance with the terms of issue of Shares of those Classes. Any fees, expenses, costs or charges not attributable to a particular Fund will be allocated by the Board in a manner which it believes is fair to the Shareholders generally.

8. TAXATION

8.1 General

The following is a summary of certain material Luxembourg tax consequences of purchasing, owning and disposing of Shares. It does not purport to be a complete analysis of all possible tax situations that may be relevant to a decision to purchase, own or sell Shares. It is included herein solely for preliminary information purposes. It is not intended to be, nor should it be construed to be, legal or tax advice. This summary does not allow any conclusion to be drawn with respect to issues not specifically addressed.

The following description of Luxembourg tax law is based on the Luxembourg laws and regulations in effect and as generally interpreted by the Luxembourg tax authorities on the date of the Prospectus. These laws and interpretations are subject to change that may occur after such date, even with retroactive or retrospective effect.

Prospective purchasers of the Shares should consult their own tax advisers as to the particular tax consequences of subscribing, purchasing, holding and disposing of the Shares, including the application and effect of any federal, state or local taxes under the tax laws of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg and each country of which they are residents or citizens.

Please be aware that the residence concept used under the respective headings below applies for Luxembourg income tax assessment purposes only. Any reference in the present section to a tax, duty, levy impost or other charge or withholding of a similar nature refers to Luxembourg tax law and/or concepts only. Also, please note that a reference to Luxembourg income tax generally encompasses corporate income tax (*impôt sur le revenu des collectivités*), municipal business tax (*impôt commercial communal*), a solidarity surcharge (*contribution au fonds pour l'emploi*) and personal income tax (*impôt sur le revenu des personnes physiques*). Corporate taxpayers may further be subject to net wealth tax (*impôt sur la fortune*), as well as other duties, levies and taxes. Corporate income tax, municipal business tax and the solidarity surcharge apply to most corporate taxpayers resident in Luxembourg for tax purposes. Individual taxpayers are generally subject to personal income tax and solidarity surcharge. Under certain circumstances, where individual taxpayers realise certain trading income, municipal business tax may apply as well.

8.2 The Company

8.2.1 Income Tax

The Company is not liable to any Luxembourg income tax.

8.2.2 **Subscription Tax**

The Company is subject to a subscription tax (*taxe d'abonnement*) of 0.05% per annum levied on the Net Asset Value at the end of each calendar quarter.

The Net Asset Value of the Company (the Net Asset Value of a Fund, in case the Company has multiple Funds) derived from investments in environmentally

sustainable economic activities, as defined in article 3 of Regulation (EU) 2020/852 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 18 June 2020 on the establishment of a framework to facilitate sustainable investment, and amending Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 (**Sustainable Investments Regulation**), is subject to a reduced subscription tax rate as follows:

- 0.04% annual subscription tax rate, provided that at least 5% of the Net Asset Value of the Company (or the Net Asset Value of the Fund, in case the Company has multiple Funds) derives from investments in sustainable economic activities, as per article 3 of the Sustainable Investments Regulation.
- 0.03% annual subscription tax rate, provided that at least 20% of the Net Asset Value of the Company (or the Net Asset Value of the Fund, in case the Company has multiple Funds) derives from investments in sustainable economic activities, as per article 3 of the Sustainable Investments Regulation.
- 0.02% annual subscription tax rate, provided that at least 35% of the Net Asset Value of the Company (or the Net Asset Value of the Fund, in case the Company has multiple Funds) derives from investments in sustainable economic activities, as per article 3 of the Sustainable Investments Regulation.
- 0.01% annual subscription tax rate, provided that at least 50% of the Net Asset Value of the Company (or the Net Asset Value of the Fund, in case the Company has multiple Funds) derives from investments in sustainable economic activities, as per article 3 of the Sustainable Investments Regulation.

In order to apply the abovementioned reduced annual subscription tax rates, the statutory auditor of the Company must issue a statement certifying the percentage of the Company's Net Asset Value (the percentage of each Funds' Net Asset Value, if the Company has multiple Funds) as at 31 December of each calendar year which derives from investments in sustainable economic activities, as defined in article 3 of the Sustainable Investments Regulation. This percentage will be applied in order to compute the subscription tax due in the subsequent four quarters.

A reduced tax rate of 0.01% per annum applies to the Net Asset Value at the end of each calendar quarter in the following cases:

- (a) UCIs whose exclusive object is the collective investment in money market instruments and the placing of deposits with credit institutions;
- (b) UCIs whose exclusive object is the collective investment in deposits with credit institutions; and
- (c) individuals compartments of UCIs with multiple compartments referred

to in the 2010 Law as well as to individual classes of securities issued within a UCI or within a compartment of a UCI with multiple compartments, provided that the securities of such compartments or classes are reserved to one or more institutional investors.

The following items are exempt from the subscription tax:

- the Net Asset Value derived from units held in other UCIs, provided that such units have already been subject to the subscription tax provided for in Article 174 of the 2010 Law or in Article 68 of the Luxembourg law of 13 February 2007 on specialised investment funds (SIFs), as amended, or in Article 46 of the Luxembourg law of 23 July 2016 on reserved alternative investment funds (RAIFs);
- (b) UCIs as well as individual compartments of UCIs with multiple compartments:
 - (i) whose securities are reserved to institutional investors, and
 - (ii) whose exclusive object is the collective investment in money market instruments and the placing of deposits with credit institutions, and
 - (iii) whose weighted residual portfolio maturity does not exceed ninety days, and
 - (iv) which have obtained the highest possible rating from a recognised rating agency.

Where several classes of securities exist within the UCI or the compartment, the exemption only applies to classes whose securities are reserved for institutional investors;

- (c) UCIs whose securities are reserved to (i) institutions for occupational retirement provisions or similar investments vehicles, set up at the initiative of one or more employers for the benefit of their employees and (ii) companies of one or more employers investing funds they hold, to provide retirement benefits to their employees;
- (d) UCIs as well as individual compartments of UCIs with multiple compartments whose main objective is the investment in microfinance institutions;
- (e) UCIs as well as individual compartments of UCIs with multiple compartments:
 - whose securities are listed or traded on at least one stock exchange or another regulated market operating regularly, recognised and open to the public; and
 - (ii) whose exclusive object is to replicate the performance of one

or more indices.

If several classes of securities exist within the UCI or the compartment, the exemption only applies to classes fulfilling the condition of sub-point (i) above.

For the avoidance of doubt, this subscription tax forms part of the operating costs of the Company.

8.2.3 EU Anti-Tax Avoidance Directive

The EU adopted Council Directive (EU) 2016/1164 on 12 July 2016 (**ATAD I**) and Council Directive (EU) 2017/952 on 29 May 2017 (**ATAD II** and together with ATAD I collectively referred as **ATAD**).

ATAD I was implemented in Luxembourg by the law dated 21 December 2018 and ATAD II was implemented in Luxembourg by the law dated 20 December 2019 and entered into force as of 1 January 2020, except for the provision on reverse hybrid mismatches which will enter into force on 1 January 2022.

Further to the transposition of ATAD, Luxembourg has introduced controlled foreign company rules, limitations to the deductibility of exceeding borrowing costs and rules tackling hybrid mismatches. Furthermore, Luxembourg has amended existing provisions regarding exit taxation and the general anti-abuse rule.

Because the Company is exempt from Luxembourg income tax, ATAD implications should not arise at the Company level but could potentially arise at the level of other entities used in the investment structure or the Shareholders.

8.2.4 Value Added Tax

The Company is considered in Luxembourg as a taxable person for value added tax (**VAT**) purposes without any input VAT deduction right. A VAT exemption applies in Luxembourg for services qualifying as fund management services. Other services supplied to the Company could potentially trigger VAT, which should qualify as an expense for the Company.

The Company should register for VAT purposes in Luxembourg. The Company should self-assess the VAT due on taxable goods and services purchased from abroad. No VAT liability arises in principle in Luxembourg in respect of any payments by the Company to its Shareholders, to the extent such payments are linked to their subscription of the Shares and do, therefore, not constitute the consideration received for taxable services or goods supplied.

8.2.5 Other Taxes

No stamp duty or other tax is payable in Luxembourg on the issue of Shares in the Company against cash, except a fixed registration duty of seventy-five Euro (EUR 75.-) which is paid upon the incorporation of the Company and any subsequent modification of its articles of incorporation.

The Company is exempt from net wealth tax.

The Company may be subject to withholding tax on dividends and interest and to tax on capital gains in the country of origin of its investments. As the Company itself is exempt from income tax, withholding tax levied at source, if any, is not refundable in Luxembourg. It is not certain whether the Company itself would be able to benefit from Luxembourg's double tax treaties network. Whether the Company may benefit from a double tax treaty concluded by Luxembourg must be analysed on a case-by-case basis. As the Company is structured as an investment company (as opposed to a mere co-ownership of assets), certain double tax treaties signed by Luxembourg may directly apply to the Company.

8.3 Shareholders

8.3.1 Luxembourg Tax Residency of the Shareholders

A Shareholder will not become resident, nor be deemed to be resident, in Luxembourg by reason only of the holding and/or disposing of the Shares or the execution, performance or enforcement of his/her rights thereunder.

Furthermore, a Shareholder will not be deemed to have a permanent establishment in Luxembourg by reason only of the holding and/or disposing of the Shares or the execution, performance or enforcement of his/her rights thereunder.

8.3.2 Luxembourg Resident Shareholders

A Luxembourg resident Shareholder should not be liable to any Luxembourg income tax on reimbursement of the share capital contributed to the Company.

Luxembourg resident individual Shareholders

Any dividends and other payments derived from the Shares received by Luxembourg resident individuals, who act in the course of the management of either their private wealth or their professional/business activity are subject to income tax at the progressive ordinary rate.

Capital gains realised upon the sale, disposal or redemption of Shares by Luxembourg resident individual Shareholders acting in the course of the management of their private wealth should not be subject to Luxembourg income tax unless said capital gains qualify either as speculative gains or as gains on a substantial participation. Capital gains are deemed to be speculative and are thus subject to income tax at ordinary rates if the Shares are disposed of within six months of their acquisition, or if their disposal precedes their acquisition. A shareholding is considered as substantial shareholding in limited cases, in particular if (i) the shareholder has held, either alone or together with his/her spouse or partner and/or his/her minor children, either directly or indirectly, at any time within the five years preceding the realisation of the gain, more than 10% of the share capital of the Fund or (ii) the taxpayer acquired free of charge, within the five years preceding the transfer, a participation that was constituting a substantial participation in the hands of the alienator (or the alienators in case

of successive transfers free of charge within the same five-year period). Capital gains realised on a substantial participation more than six months after the acquisition thereof are subject to income tax according to the half-global rate method, (i.e. the average rate applicable to the total income is calculated according to progressive income tax rates and half of the average rate is applied to the capital gains realised on the substantial participation). A disposal may include a sale, an exchange, a contribution or any other kind of alienation of the shareholding.

Taxable gains are determined as being the difference between the sale, repurchase or redemption price and the acquisition cost of the Shares sold or redeemed.

Luxembourg resident corporate Shareholders

Luxembourg resident corporate Shareholders (*sociétés de capitaux*) must include any profits derived, as well as any gain realised on the sale, disposal or redemption of Shares, in their taxable profits for Luxembourg income tax assessment purposes. Taxable gains are determined as being the difference between the sale, repurchase or redemption price and the book value of the Shares sold or redeemed.

Luxembourg resident Shareholders benefiting from a special tax regime

Luxembourg resident Shareholders which benefit from a special tax regime, such as (i) UCIs governed by the 2010 Law (ii) SIFs governed by the law of 13 February 2007, as amended (iii) family wealth management companies governed by the law of 11 May 2007 as amended, and (iv) RAIFs treated as SIFs for Luxembourg tax purposes governed by the law of 23 July 2016, are tax exempt entities in Luxembourg, and are thus not subject to any Luxembourg income tax.

8.3.3 Luxembourg Non-Resident Shareholders

Shareholders, who are non-residents of Luxembourg for tax purposes and who have neither a permanent establishment nor a permanent representative in Luxembourg to which or whom the Shares are attributable, are generally not subject to any Luxembourg income tax on income received and capital gains realised upon the sale, disposal, redemption or exchange of the Shares.

Corporate Shareholders which are non-resident of Luxembourg for tax purposes but which have a permanent establishment or a permanent representative in Luxembourg to which or whom the Shares are attributable must include any income received, as well as any gain realised on the sale, disposal, redemption or exchange of Shares, in their taxable income for Luxembourg tax assessment purposes. The same inclusion applies to individuals, acting in the course of the management of a professional or business undertaking, who have a permanent establishment or a permanent representative in Luxembourg, to which or whom the Shares are attributable. Taxable gains are determined as being the difference between the sale, repurchase or redemption price and the book value of the Shares sold or redeemed.

Shareholders should consult their professional advisors regarding the possible tax or other consequences of buying, holding, transferring or selling Shares under the laws of their countries of citizenship, residence or domicile.

8.3.4 **Net Wealth Tax**

A Luxembourg resident Shareholder, as well as a non-resident Shareholder having a permanent establishment or a permanent representative in Luxembourg to which or whom the Shares are attributable, are subject to Luxembourg net wealth tax on such Shares, except if the Shareholder is (i) a resident or non-resident individual taxpayer, (ii) a UCI governed by the 2010 Law, (iii) a securitisation company governed by the law of 22 March 2004 on securitisation, as amended, (iv) a company governed by the law of 15 June 2004 on venture capital vehicles, as amended, (v) a SIF governed by the law of 13 February 2007, as amended, (vi) a family wealth management company governed by the law of 11 May 2007, as amended, (vii) a professional pension institution governed by the law of 13 July 2005, as amended, or (viii) a RAIF governed by the law of 23 July 2016.

However, (i) a securitisation company governed by the law of 22 March 2004 on securitisation, as amended, (ii) a company governed by the law of 15 June 2004 on venture capital vehicles, as amended, (iii) a professional pension institution governed by the law of 13 July 2005, as amended, and (iv) a RAIF treated as a venture capital vehicle for Luxembourg tax purposes and governed by the law of 23 July 2016 remain subject to the minimum net wealth tax.

8.3.5 Other Taxes

Under Luxembourg tax law, where an individual Shareholder is a resident of Luxembourg for tax purposes at the time of their death, the Shares are included in their taxable basis for inheritance tax purposes. On the contrary, no estate or inheritance tax is levied on the transfer of the Shares upon death of an individual Shareholder in cases where the deceased was not a resident of Luxembourg for inheritance tax purposes at the time of their death.

Luxembourg gift tax may be levied on a gift or donation of the Shares if embodied in a Luxembourg notarial deed or otherwise registered in Luxembourg.

8.4 FATCA

Defined terms used in this section should have the meaning as set forth in the IGA, unless otherwise stated.

As part of the process of implementing FATCA, Luxembourg entered into the IGA which requires Financial Institutions located in Luxembourg to report, when required, information on Financial Accounts held by US Specified Persons and non-US financial institutions that do not comply with FATCA and, if any, to the competent authorities.

Being established in Luxembourg, the Company will be treated as a Foreign Financial Institution.

This status includes the obligation of the Company to regularly obtain and verify information on all of its Shareholders. Upon request of the Company, each Shareholder shall agree to provide certain information, including, in case of a passive Non-Financial Foreign Entity (**NFFE**), the direct or indirect owners above a certain threshold of ownership of such NFFE, along with the required supporting documentation. Similarly, each Shareholder shall agree to actively provide to the Company within thirty days any information that would affect its status, as for instance a new mailing address or a new residency address.

Under the IGA, the Company is required to report to the Luxembourg tax authorities certain direct holdings of equity or debt interests in the Company by and payments made to (a) US investors that are Specified US Persons, (b) certain US controlled foreign entity investors, i.e. entities that are to be treated as Passive NFFEs that have one or more Controlling Persons who is/are Specified US Persons and (c) non-US financial institutional investors that comply neither with the terms of an applicable IGA nor with the US Treasury FATCA Regulations (Nonparticipating Financial Institutions).

The information to be reported with respect to the above reportable holders of equity or debt interests in the Company and persons who control a passive NFFE that is a holder of an equity or debt interest in the Company, would include the name, address, country (or countries) of tax residence, US and other tax identification number(s) of such persons, their date and place of birth in the case of individuals, the aggregate year-end value of the equity and/or debt interest held in the Company (or the fact that it was disposed of during the year) and the aggregate amount paid by the Company, during the year being reported, to each such holder with respect to the equity and/or debt interest in the Company. Under the IGA, such information will be onward reported by the Luxembourg tax authorities to the US Internal Revenue Service under the general information exchange provisions of the multilateral Convention on Mutual Administrative Assistance in Tax Matters, to which both the US and Luxembourg are parties.

Additionally, as further detailed under Company's privacy policy available at http://www.foresightgroup.eu/foresight-sicav/, the Company is responsible for the processing of personal data and each Shareholder has notably a right to access the data communicated to the Luxembourg tax authorities and to correct such data (if necessary). Any data obtained by the Company are to be processed in accordance with the Data Protection Law.

Although the Company will attempt to satisfy any obligation imposed on it to avoid imposition of FATCA withholding tax and of the Luxembourg fines, no assurance can be given that the Company will be able to satisfy these obligations. If the Company becomes subject to a withholding tax or fine as result of the FATCA regime, the value of the Shares held by the Shareholders may suffer material losses. A failure of the Company to obtain such information from each Shareholder and to transmit it to the Luxembourg tax authorities may trigger the 30% withholding tax to be imposed on payments of US source income and on proceeds from the sale of property or other assets that could give rise to US source income as well as fines.

Any Shareholder that fails to comply with the Company's documentation requests may be charged with any taxes and/or fines imposed on the Company and attributable to such

Shareholder's failure to provide the information and the Company may, at its sole discretion, redeem the Shares of such Shareholder.

Shareholders who invest through intermediaries are reminded to check if and how their intermediaries will comply with this US withholding tax and reporting regime.

The scope and application of FATCA withholding and information reporting pursuant to the terms of FATCA and the intergovernmental agreements conclude by the US are subject to review by the US, Luxembourg and other governments having concluded an intergovernmental agreement with the US, and rules may change. Investors should contact their own tax advisers regarding the application of FATCA to their particular circumstances.

The Company intends, within its rules as included within this Prospectus, to be fully compliant with the terms of the IGA.

8.5 Common Reporting Standard

Defined terms used in this section should have the meaning as set forth in the CRS Law as defined below, unless provided otherwise herein.

On 9 December 2014, the Council of the European Union adopted the Directive 2014/107/EU amending the Directive 2011/16/EU of 15 February 2011 on administrative cooperation in the field of taxation which now provides for an automatic exchange of financial account information between EU Member States (**DAC Directive**). The adoption of the aforementioned directive implements CRS and generalises the automatic exchange of information within the European Union as of 1 January 2016.

In addition, Luxembourg signed the OECD's multilateral competent authority agreement (**Multilateral Agreement**) to automatically exchange information under the CRS. Under this Multilateral Agreement, Luxembourg will automatically exchange financial account information with other participating jurisdictions as of 1 January 2016. The Luxembourg law of 18 December 2015 implements this Multilateral Agreement, jointly with the DAC Directive introducing the CRS in Luxembourg law (**CRS Law**).

Under the CRS Law, the Company should qualify as a Luxembourg Financial Institution and be required to apply due diligence procedures to determine the identity, country or countries of tax residence and CRS status of each investor (holder of a direct equity interest or of a direct debt interest, if any, in the Company) and of Controlling Persons of passive non-financial entities (**NFEs**) and to report annually to the Luxembourg tax authorities, as of 30 June 2017 and without prejudice to other applicable data protection provisions, information with respect to investors qualifying as Reportable Persons and Controlling Persons of certain NFEs which are themselves Reportable Persons.

The information to be reported with respect to such Reportable Persons would include the name, address, country (or countries) of tax residence, tax identification number(s) of such persons, their date and place of birth in the case of individuals, the aggregate yearend value of the equity and/or debt interest held in the Company (or the fact that it was disposed of during the year) and the aggregate amount paid by the Company, during the year being reported, to each such person with respect to the equity and/or debt interest

held in the Company. This information, as exhaustively set out in Annex I of the CRS Law (**CRS Information**), will include personal data related to the Reportable Persons.

The Luxembourg tax authorities will forward such information to the competent authorities of the relevant CRS participating jurisdictions in accordance with the DAC Directive or the Multilateral Agreement, under the general information exchange provisions of the multilateral Convention on Mutual Administrative Assistance in Tax Matters.

Additionally, the Company is responsible for the processing of personal data and each Shareholder has a right to access the data communicated to the Luxembourg tax authorities and to correct such data (if necessary). Any data obtained by the Company are to be processed in accordance with the Data Protection Law.

The Company's ability to satisfy its reporting obligations under the CRS Law will depend on each Shareholder providing the Company with the CRS Information, including information regarding direct or indirect owners of each Shareholder, along with the required supporting documentary evidence. Upon request of the Company, each Shareholder shall agree to provide the Company such information.

Although the Fund will attempt to satisfy any obligation imposed on it and to avoid imposition of Luxembourg fines, no assurance can be given that the Company will be able to satisfy these obligations. If the Company becomes subject to a fine as result of the CRS Law, the value of the Shares held by the Shareholders may suffer material losses.

Any Shareholder that fails to comply with the Company's documentation requests may be held liable for fines imposed on the Company and attributable to such Shareholder's failure to provide the Information and the Company may, in its sole discretion, redeem the Shares of such Shareholder.

Investors should consult their own tax advisor or otherwise seek professional advice regarding the impact of the CRS Law on their investment.

8.6 EU DAC 6 Directive

On 21 March 2020 the Luxembourg Parliament passed a law transposing Council Directive (EU) 2018/822 of 25 May 2018 (**DAC 6 Directive**) regarding mandatory automatic exchange of information in the field of taxation in relation to reportable cross-border arrangements. The DAC 6 Directive has retroactive effect as from 25 June 2018.

The DAC 6 Directive introduces the obligation to report potentially aggressive cross-border tax planning arrangements to tax authorities, which shall then be subject to automatic exchange of information with other EU member states. In principle, the reporting obligation lies with the intermediaries involved in the arrangement (as this term is defined the DAC 6 Directive).

The DAC 6 Directive does not define the concept of aggressive tax planning arrangements. Instead, it presents a list of the features and elements of transactions that present a strong indication of tax avoidance or abuse, which are referred to as hallmarks.

A cross-border arrangement should qualify as reportable if it has been implemented as from 25 June 2018 and presents at least one of the hallmarks laid down in the DAC 6 Directive. Furthermore, certain hallmarks are linked to the so-called main benefit test (i.e. a cross-border arrangement presenting certain hallmarks should be reported under the DAC 6 Directive if, having regard to all relevant facts and circumstances, obtaining a tax advantage is one of the main benefits which a person may reasonably expect to derive from participation in the arrangement).

If the Company's investment structure were to fall under any of the hallmarks laid down by the DAC 6 Directive triggering a reporting obligation, the corresponding reporting would be filed with the competent authorities.

9. DISSOLUTION, LIQUIDATION AND MERGERS

9.1 Dissolution

The Company has been established for an unlimited period of time. The duration of a Fund, if any, is specified in respect of that Fund in Appendix I.

The Company may at any time be dissolved by a resolution taken by the general meeting of Shareholders subject to the quorum and majority requirements as defined in the Articles of Incorporation of the Company.

Whenever the capital falls below two thirds of the legal minimum capital, the Board must submit the question of the dissolution of the Company to a general meeting of Shareholders. The general meeting, for which no quorum shall be required, shall decide on simple majority of the votes of the Shares present and represented at the meeting.

The question of the dissolution of the Company shall also be referred to a general meeting of Shareholders whenever the capital falls below one quarter of the minimum capital. In such event, the general meeting shall be held without quorum requirements, and the dissolution may be decided by the Shareholders holding one quarter of the votes present and represented at that meeting.

The meeting must be convened so that it is held within a period of forty days from when it is ascertained that the net assets of the Company have fallen below two thirds or one quarter of the legal minimum as the case may be.

In the event that for any reason the value of the total net assets in any Fund or the value of the net assets of any Classes within a Fund has decreased to, or has not reached, an amount determined by the Board to be the minimum level for such Fund to be operated in an economically efficient manner, or in case of substantial modification in the political, economic or monetary situation or as a matter of economic rationalisation, the Board may decide to compulsorily redeem all the Shares of the relevant Classes issued in such Fund at the Net Asset Value per Share (taking into account actual realisation prices of investments and realisation expenses), calculated at the Valuation Point at which such decision shall take effect. The Fund shall serve a notice to the holders of the relevant Classes in writing prior to the effective date for the compulsory redemption, which will indicate the reasons for, and the procedure of, the redemption operations.

In addition, a general meeting of Shareholders of the Classes issued in any Fund may, upon proposal from the Board, redeem all the Shares of the relevant Classes issued in such Fund and refund to the Shareholders the net asset value of their Shares (taking into account actual realisation prices of investments and realisation expenses) calculated at the valuation point at which such decision shall take effect. There shall be no quorum requirements for such general meeting of Shareholders which shall decide by resolution taken by simple majority of those present or represented.

All redeemed Shares shall be cancelled.

9.2 Liquidation

In the event of dissolution, one or more liquidators, approved by the CSSF, shall be appointed by a general meeting of Shareholders to realise the assets of the Company, subject to the supervision of the relevant supervisory authority in the best interests of the Shareholders. The proceeds of the liquidation of each Fund, net of all liabilities and liquidation expenses, shall be distributed by the Depositary upon instruction given by the liquidator(s) among the holders of Shares in each Class in accordance with their respective rights. The amounts not claimed by Shareholders at the end of the liquidation process shall be deposited, in accordance with Luxembourg law, with the *Caisse de Consignation* in Luxembourg until the statutory limitation period has lapsed. If an event requiring liquidation arises, issue, redemption, exchange or conversion of the Shares is void.

9.3 Mergers

Any merger of a Fund with another Fund of the Company or with another UCITS (whether subject to Luxembourg law or not) shall be decided by the Board unless the Board decides to submit the decision for such merger to a general meeting of Shareholders of the Fund. In the latter case, no quorum is required for such meeting and the decision for such merger is taken by a simple majority of the votes cast. In case of a merger of a Fund where, as a result, the Company ceases to exist, the merger shall, notwithstanding the foregoing, be decided by a general meeting of Shareholders resolving in accordance with the quorum and majority requirements for the amendment of the Articles of Incorporation.

Under the same circumstances as for the liquidation of Funds or Classes as described above, the Board may also decide (i) upon the reorganisation of any Fund by means of a division into two or more separate Funds or (ii) to reorganise the Shares of a Fund into two or more Classes or combine two or more Classes into a single Class providing in each case it is in the interests of the Shareholders of the relevant Fund. The publication or notification of reorganisation of any Fund by means of a division into two or more separate Funds will, in addition, contain information in relation to the two or more separate Funds resulting from the reorganisation.

Where the Board does not have the authority to do so or where the Board determines that the decision should be put for Shareholders' approval, the decision to reorganise a Fund or to merge Classes may be taken at a general meeting of Shareholders of the Fund or Classes to be merged or reorganised instead of being taken by the Board. At such general Class meeting, no quorum shall be required and the decision to merge or reorganise must be approved by Shareholders holding at least a simple majority of the Shares present or represented.

These merger and reorganisation events will be notified to the relevant Shareholders or published, as required by applicable laws and regulations, at least thirty days before the last date for requesting the redemption or conversion free of charge in order to enable the Shareholders to request redemption or conversion of their Shares, free of charge, before the merger or reorganisation becomes effective.

10. GENERAL INFORMATION

10.1 Accounting Periods

The annual accounting period of the Company ends each year on the 31st of May (the accounting reference date), except for the first annual accounting period which began on the date of incorporation and will end on 31 May 2022, with an interim accounting period ending on 30 November and, for the first time, on 30 November 2021.

10.2 Annual Reports

The annual report of the Company will normally be published within two months of each annual accounting period although the Board reserves the right to publish the annual report at a later date but not later than four months from the end of each annual accounting period.

The half yearly report will be published within two months of each interim accounting period.

A long report containing the full accounts is available to any person free of charge at http://www.foresightgroup.eu/foresight-sicav/ and upon request to the Company at its registered office.

10.3 Shareholder Meetings

10.3.1 Annual General Meeting

An annual general meeting will be held in Luxembourg in each year (and for the first time in 2022).

10.3.2 Requisitions of a General Meeting

A general meeting can be called by the Board or by Shareholders holding a minimum of 10% of the Company's share capital, subject to the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation.

Notices of all general meetings are sent by mail to all registered Shareholders at their registered address at least eight days prior to the meeting or, if the Shareholders have individually accepted to receive the convening notices by another means of communication ensuring access to the information, by such other means of communication. Such notice will indicate the time and place of the meeting, the conditions of admission thereto, will contain the agenda and refer to the requirements of Luxembourg law with regard to the necessary quorum and majorities at the meeting. To the extent required by law, further notices will be published in the RESA and in Luxembourg newspaper(s) and in any such other newspaper as the Board may decide.

The legal requirements as to notice, quorum and voting at all general meetings of Shareholders of the Company, a Fund or a Class are included in the Articles of Incorporation. General meetings of Shareholders of any given Fund or Class shall decide upon matters relating to that Fund or Class.

10.4 Income Allocations

The distribution rights attached to the Shares available are specified in respect of the relevant Fund in Appendix I.

Some Funds may have interim and final income allocations and other Funds may have quarterly income allocations and some Funds may only have final income allocation dates. For each of the Funds income is allocated in respect of the income available at each accounting date.

For any Fund or Class entitled to distributions, a general meeting of Shareholders of the relevant Fund or Class shall, upon proposal from the Board and within the limits provided by law, determine how the results of a Fund or Class shall be disposed of, and may from time to time declare, or authorise the Board to declare, distributions. For any Fund or Class entitled to distributions, the Board may furthermore decide at any time to pay interim dividends in compliance with the conditions set forth by law.

In relation to Income Shares, distributions of income for each Fund in which Income Shares are issued are paid by bank transfers directly into a Shareholder's bank account on or before the relevant income allocation date in each year as set out in Appendix I.

Distributions will be made in cash, in the Base Currency of the relevant Class and at such time and place that the Board shall determine from time to time.

For Funds in which Accumulation Shares are issued, income will become part of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Class and will be reflected in the price of each such Accumulation Share as at the end of the relevant accounting period.

The amount available for distribution in any accounting period is calculated by taking the aggregate of the income received or receivable for the account of the relevant Fund in respect of that period, and deducting the charges and expenses of the relevant Fund paid or payable out of income in respect of that accounting period. The Board then makes such other adjustments as it considers appropriate (and after consulting the Company's auditor as appropriate) in relation to taxation, income equalisation, income unlikely to be received within 12 months following the relevant income allocation date, income which should not be accounted for on an accrual basis because of lack of information as to how it accrues, transfers between the income and capital account and other matters.

Distributions, however, may only be made provided that, after the distribution, the net assets of the Company do not fall below the minimum set forth by law, i.e. one million two hundred fifty thousand Euro (EUR 1,250,000.-) or any then equivalent amount in any other currency converted into Euro.

All distributions will be made net of any income, withholding and similar taxes payable by the Company, including, for example, any withholding taxes on interest or dividends received by the Company and capital gains taxes.

The Company reserves the right to retain individual amounts of income equivalent to ten Euro (EUR 10.-) or less.

The Company will operate grouping for equalisation. Each Class will operate its own equalisation account. Shares purchased during a distribution period are called Group 2 Shares. Shares purchased during any previous distribution period are called Group 1 Shares. Group 2 Shares contain in their purchase price an amount called equalisation which represents a proportion of the net income of the Fund that has accrued up to the date of purchase. The amount of equalisation is averaged across all the Shareholders of Group 2 Shares and is refunded to them as part of their first distribution and is treated as a return of capital for tax purposes. Being capital, this is not liable to income tax but must be deducted from the cost of Shares for capital gains tax purposes.

The amount of income equalisation in respect of any Share applies shall be either the actual amount of income included in the issue price of that Share, or, an amount arrived at by taking the aggregate of the amounts of income included in the price in respect of Shares of that Class issued or sold to Shareholders in the annual or interim accounting period in question and dividing that aggregate amount by the number of such Shares and applying the resultant average to each of the Shares in question.

If a distribution made in relation to any Income Shares remains unclaimed for a period of five years after it has become due, it will be forfeited and will revert to the relevant Fund (or, if that no longer exists, to the Company).

10.5 Documents of the Company

Copies of the Articles of Incorporation, the Prospectus, the KIIDs, the most recent annual and semi-annual financial statements of the Company may be obtained upon request, free of charge, from the registered office of the Company.

The following material contracts are available for inspection during normal business hours on any Business Day at the registered office of the Company (copies of these documents may also be delivered without cost to Shareholders at their request):

- 10.5.1 the Management Agreement;
- 10.5.2 the Investment Management Agreement;
- 10.5.3 the Depositary Agreement;
- 10.5.4 the Central Administration Agreement; and
- 10.5.5 the Global Distribution Agreement.

Details of the above contracts are given under Section 6 'Governance, Management and Administration'.

Investors desiring to receive further information regarding the Company or the Management Company (including the procedures relating to complaints handling, the

strategy followed for the exercise of the voting rights of the Company, the policy for placing orders to deal on behalf of the Company with other entities, the best execution policy as well as the arrangements relating to the fee, commission or non-monetary benefit in relation with the investment management and administration of the Company) should contact the Management Company or the Administrator.

10.6 No Investment Advice

Neither the Company or the Management Company is authorised to give investment advice and persons requiring such advice should consult a professional financial adviser. All applications for Shares are made solely on the basis of the current prospectus of the Company, and investors should ensure that they have the most up to date version.

10.7 Complaints

Investors wishing to make a complaint about the operation of the Company should contact one of the Company, Management Company or the Administrator.

10.8 Indemnity

The Articles of Incorporation contains provisions indemnifying the Directors, other officers against liability in certain circumstances other than in respect of their negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust.

10.9 Notices

All notices or documents required to be served on Shareholders shall be served by post to the address of the Shareholder as evidenced on the register. All documents and remittances are sent at the risk of the Shareholder.

APPENDIX I FUND DETAILS

Name:	Foresight Global Real Infrastructure (Lux) Fund
Duration:	Unlimited duration
Duration:	Offillifited duration
Launch Date:	29 October 2021
Initial Offering Period	29 October 2021 to 12 November 2021
Initial Subscription Price	€1 per Share
Subscription Price after the Initial Offering Period	the Net Asset Value per Share at the next Valuation Point following receipt of the application
Investment Objective:	The Fund aims to grow, over any five year period, by more than 3% per annum above the rate of UK inflation (as measured by the UK Consumer Prices Index). There is no guarantee that the Fund will achieve a positive return over this, or any other, period and you may not get back the original amount you invested.
Investment Policy:	The Fund will invest directly in the shares of companies (including listed Investment Trusts, closed-ended Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs), ETFs and other investment company structures depending on the relevant jurisdictions) or units of master limited partnerships that, in each case, are publicly traded (listed) on stock exchanges in developed markets (meaning North America, Western Europe and Asia Pacific); and that own or operate real infrastructure or renewable energy assets anywhere in the world. Such companies' revenue streams are typically directly or indirectly supported by long term government or public sector contracts and government supported initiatives.
	The companies that the Fund invests in will typically own or operate assets in the following infrastructure subsectors: renewable energy generation (e.g. offshore wind, onshore wind, solar energy, and hydro-electricity), core economic infrastructure (e.g. schools, hospitals and transport) and property with infrastructure characteristics (e.g. social housing and medical facilities).
	No more than 50% of the Fund by value will be invested in shares that have a primary listing in a single country.
	No more than 10% of the Fund will be invested in aggregate in shares or units of other UCITS or other UCIs. This

restriction does not apply where the Fund is investing in shares or units of a master fund qualifying as a UCITS.

The Fund may also invest in cash for liquidity and cash flow purposes and to pay Fund expenses and redemptions.

The Fund does not currently intend to invest in derivatives or forward transactions.

The Investment Manager aims to manage the Fund in a manner that would allow the Fund's eligibility for ISAs should the Company obtain approval as a 'recognised UCITS' in the United Kingdom.

SFDR Disclosures

Sustainability considerations play an important role in the Investment Manager's stock selection process.

The Fund has an objective of making sustainable investments (within the meaning of Article 2(17) of SFDR) and accordingly qualifies as an Article 9 product under SFDR. The Investment Manager seeks to avoid investing in any investment that it reasonably considers may significantly harm the sustainable investment objectives of the Fund. For the avoidance of doubt, derivatives are not used for investment purposes and therefore not used to contribute in any way to the sustainability objectives of the Company.

For the purposes of the Taxonomy Regulation, the Investment Manager has taken the view that the investments underlying this financial product contribute to climate change mitigation, pollution prevention and control, and the sustainable use and protection of water and marine resources.

The Fund will only invest in the shares of a company if the Investment Manager in its discretion considers that the target entity delivers a net social or environmental benefit through assessing the investment against the Sustainable Investment Criteria. The Investment Manager will firstly assess company shares based on the ten principles of the United Nations Global Compact for business which cover areas including human rights, labour rights, environmental safeguards and combating bribery and corruption. The Investment Manager will then make a qualitative assessment of the target entity and conclude whether sustainability is a core and long term focus of the target entity. If it is the Investment Manager's opinion that an investee company no longer meets the

Sustainable Investment Criteria, the Investment Manager will not make any further investments in that company and will seek to realise in an orderly fashion, its investment in such a company.

The Investment Manager reviews and assesses potential sustainability risks within the meaning of SFDR as part of its decision-making processes with respect to the investments to be made by the Fund and has integrated such review within its internal procedures and policies. Such review is performed by the management team of the Investment Manager on an ongoing basis if and when investments are made. The risk management team of the Management Company also performs a regular (ex-post) review of those risks as part of the discharge of its duties. The Investment Manager considers that the investments to be made by the Fund are likely to be materially affected by sustainability risks and that if any of those risks materialises, it is likely that the returns on such investments will be affected negatively. Investors should note that it is very difficult to assess with any reasonable certainty the likely outcome of any sustainability risk on the investments and/or the risk of occurrence of any such risk. The investors' attention is drawn to the risk factors entitled "Sustainability Risks" in Section 5.25.

Sustainability Indicators

In assessing, measuring and monitoring the environmental characteristics of investments the Investment Manager considers the following factors which are "sustainability indicators":

Indicator	Metric
Employment during construction - temporary jobs	Person years
Employment during operation - permanent jobs	Full-time equivalents
Baseline GHG emissions (e.g. reference scenario without investment implementation)	kt CO2e/a
Absolute GHG emissions (e.g. after investment implementation)	kt CO2e/a
GHG emissions saved or avoided	kt CO2e/a
Electricity generation capacity from renewable energy sources	MW
Electricity generation capacity from conventional energy sources	MW
Electricity produced from renewable energy sources	GWh/yr

Electricity produced from conventional energy sources	GWh/yr
Thermal produced from renewable energy sources	GWh/yr
Households which could be supplied with the energy generated by the project	No. of households
Electrical Energy Efficiency achieved	%
Thermal Energy Efficiency achieved	%

ESG Policy

The Investment Manager manages and monitors the Fund's portfolio of investments by applying its sustainability and ESG policy that is made available to investors upon request and accessible on the Investment Manager's website on the link set out in Section 6.8 above (**ESG Policy**). In accordance with the ESG Policy, the Investment Manager is relying on the United Nations Development Goals (**SDGs**) and the Principles for Responsible Investment supported by the United Nations (**PRI**) as frameworks to structure their corporate and investment activities.

The Investment Manager has established a 'Sustainability and ESG Committee' which is responsible for shaping and steering the Investment Manager's approach to sustainability, developing vision and strategy and ensuring that sustainability and ESG considerations and frameworks that are incorporated into the Investment Manager's investment processes and asset management activities are appropriate and market leading. Details on the composition and functioning of the Sustainability and ESG Committee are available in the ESG Policy.

The Investment Manager is a signatory to the PRI and is required to submit an annual assessment that grades the business' performance across three different modules: strategy and governance; infrastructure and private equity. Therefore, all investment decisions taken by the Investment Manager must factor in, and remain true to, the PRI Principles. The Investment Manager's adherence to these principles is assessed on an annual basis by the PRI.

The SDGs also represent a key driver of the Investment Manager's investment and corporate activities. The SDGs are a list of 17 goals that seek to mobilise the international community to bring about an end to poverty and protect the planet. Across the spectrum of its activity, the Investment Manager sees itself as contributing most comprehensively to the following SDGs with respect to infrastructure: good health and well-being, affordable and clean energy, industry, innovation and infrastructure, climate action and life on land. The Investment Manager also aligns itself with a number of other external sustainability and ESG focused organisations which are listed in the ESG Policy.

In order to promote market-leading sustainability practices, the Investment Manager is required to develop a tailored approach to tracking, measuring, and reporting sustainability performance. This approach will continue to be assessed for appropriateness and updated as required. The Investment Manager implements a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) programme, as laid out in its 'CSR Statement' which is appended to the ESG Policy, through a comprehensive set of practices that are integrated into the Investment Manager's wider business operations in order to achieve and promote sustainability activities. The Sustainability and Committee is responsible for setting, reviewing, and monitoring corporate objectives in order to ascertain performance against specified CSR measures.

Global Exposure

The global exposure of the Fund is calculated using the commitment approach. This is considered to be the most relevant method for risk calculations given that the Fund does not currently intend to invest in derivatives or employ leverage. Should this change, it is considered that the commitment approach would provide sufficient insight to exposures for effective risk management.

Benchmark

The Fund aims to grow, over any five year period, by more than 3% per annum above the rate of UK inflation (as measured by the UK Consumer Prices Index). The UK Consumer Prices Index is therefore a target benchmark against which the performance of the Fund has been set (**Target Benchmark**). The Target Benchmark was chosen by the Investment Manager because the Fund will invest in investments that are inflation-linked (infrastructure and renewable energy assets are typically inflation-linked as a result of benefitting from government or public sector subsidies, concessions or service provision contracts which

	are themselves normally inflation-linked). Investors may use
	the Fund's performance against the Target Benchmark to
	assess the risks of investing in the Fund.
Key Sustainability Risk	The Fund has an objective of sustainable investment (within
Considerations	the meaning of Article 2(17) of SFDR). As a result of this
	objective, the Fund may have limited exposure to some
	companies, industries or sectors and the Fund may forego
	certain investment opportunities, or dispose of certain
	holdings, that do not align with the Sustainable Investment
	Criteria. A sustainable Fund may underperform other funds
	that do not apply similar criteria to their investments. As
	investors may differ in their views of what constitutes
	sustainable investing, the Fund may also invest in companies
	that do not reflect the beliefs and values of any particular
	investor.
Page Currency	The Page Currency of the Fund is the Fune (FUD)
Base Currency	The Base Currency of the Fund is the Euro (EUR)
Classes of Shares, Type	Class A Accumulation (EUR)
of Shares and Currency	Class A Insome (FLID)
of Denomination	Class A Income (EUR)
	Class A Accumulation (GBP)
	Class A Income (GBP)
	Class A Accumulation (USD)
	Class A Income (USD)
Income	31 July (final); 31 October (interim); 31 January (interim);
Accumulation/Distributio	and 30 April (interim)
n Dates*:	
Valuation Point:	12.00 (CFT)
valuation Point:	12.00 noon (CET)
Cut Off Point:	11.30 am (CET) in respect of the relevant Dealing Day
Dealing Frequency:	Daily on each Dealing Day
Initial Charge:	0%
Redemption Charge:	Nil
Management Company	Up to 200 million Euro: 0.04% (subject to a minimum fee of
Annual Fee:	48,000 Euro) of Net Asset Value of the Fund
	Over 200 million Euro up to 500 million Euro: 0.03% of Net Asset Value of the Fund

	Over 500 million Euro: 0.02% of Net Asset Value of the Fund
	Payable monthly in arrears (calculated by reference to the Net Asset Value of the Fund on the immediately preceding Dealing Day in respect of the relevant month.
Investment Manager	0.85% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund, payable monthly
Annual Fee:	in arrears (calculated by reference to the Net Asset Value of the Fund on the immediately preceding Dealing Day in respect of the relevant month).
Depositary Annual Fee:	The Depositary is entitled to receive a custody fee paid out of the assets of the sub-fund determined as an annual percentage calculated per market on a monthly basis based on the Fund's Net Asset Value and paid monthly in arrears. The custody fee is subject to a monthly minimum fee of EUR 500
	The Depositary will further receive out of the assets of the Fund a supervisory/depositary fee based on the Fund's Net Asset Value paid monthly in arrears and subject to a monthly minimum fee of EUR 500
	The maximum overall depositary fee (custody fee and supervisory/depositary fee) shall not exceed 0.15% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund (excluding minimum fees).
	The Depositary is also entitled to all reasonable out of pocket expenses incurred in the performance of its duties
	The Depositary Fee does not cover operational costs such as costs of buying and selling securities, transaction fees and correspondent bank charges, such charges are paid separately by the Fund.
Investor Profile:	The Fund may be suitable for those investors seeking exposure to the infrastructure asset class with a global focus. An investor should be willing to invest for the medium to long term (five years) to gain access to a portfolio managed in accordance with an investment objective and policy which targets capital growth and income from infrastructure assets. Investors must be prepared to accept fluctuations in the value of capital including possible capital loss and accept the risks of investing in equity markets.
Minimum Initial Investment:	EUR 1,000

Minimum Subsequent Investment:	EUR 500
Minimum Holding:	EUR 1,000
Minimum Redemption:	EUR 500
Minimum Collection	EUR 100 per month
Amount for Regular	
Saving	
Regular Withdrawal Facility:	Yes (minimum withdrawal per Fund year is EUR 250 or 2.5% on a minimum qualifying investment of EUR 10,000). This facility is not available if you are investing new money by direct debit in a savings scheme on a monthly basis.
ISA Status:	Expected to be a qualifying investment for stocks and shares component on becoming a 'recognised UCITS' in the United Kingdom.

The first income accumulation/distribution date for the Fund will be 31 January 2022.

APPENDIX II: INVESTMENT AND BORROWING POWERS OF THE COMPANY

1. General

Each Fund will be invested with the aim of achieving the investment objective of that Fund, but subject to the limitations set out in the Fund's investment policy, the applicable rules in 2010 Law, the Articles of Incorporation and this Prospectus.

2. UCITS - General

- 2.1 In making its investments as described elsewhere in the Prospectus, each Fund is subject to the investment restrictions described below. The following restrictions have been adopted by the Board in compliance with Luxembourg law, although they may be amended by the Board without a vote of the Shareholders.
- 2.2 In order to achieve the Company's investment objectives and the investment objectives and policies of each Fund, the following investment powers and restrictions shall apply to all investments by each Fund.
- 2.3 Investments of each Fund shall consist of:
 - 2.3.1 Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments admitted to or dealt in on a Regulated Market;
 - 2.3.2 Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments dealt in on another regulated market in a Member State which operates regularly and is recognised and open to the public;
 - 2.3.3 Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments admitted to official listing on a stock exchange in a non-Member State or dealt in another regulated market in a non-Member State which operates regularly and is recognised and open to the public;
 - 2.3.4 Recently issued Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments provided that:
 - 2.3.4.1 the terms of issue include an undertaking that application will be made for admission to official listing on a stock exchange or to another regulated market referred to in 2.3.1 to 2.3.3 above; and
 - 2.3.4.2 such admission is secured within one year of the issue.
 - 2.3.5 In so far as the Articles of Incorporation provide therefore, shares or units of UCITS authorised according to the UCITS Directive and/or other UCI within the meaning of Article 1(2) (a) and (b) of the UCITS Directive, including shares or units of a master fund qualifying as a UCITS should they be situated in a Member State or not, provided that:
 - 2.3.5.1 such other UCIs are authorised under laws which provide that they are subject to supervision considered by the CSSF to be equivalent to that laid down in EU law and that cooperation between authorities is

sufficiently ensured;

- 2.3.5.2 the level of protection for share- or unit-holders in such other UCIs is equivalent to that provided for share- or unit-holders in a UCITS, and in particular that the rules on asset segregation, borrowing, lending and uncovered sales of Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments are equivalent to the requirements of the UCITS Directive;
- 2.3.5.3 the business of the other UCI is reported in half-yearly and annual reports to enable an assessment to be made of the assets and liabilities, income and operations over the reporting period;
- 2.3.5.4 no more than 10% of the UCITS or the other UCI assets, whose acquisition is contemplated, can be, according to its instruments of incorporation, invested in aggregate in shares or units of other UCITS or other UCIs. This restriction does not apply where a Fund is investing in shares or units of a master fund qualifying as a UCITS.

For the purposes of this subparagraph 2.3.5, each sub-fund of a UCI with several sub-funds within the meaning of Article 181 of the 2010 Law must be considered as a separate issuer, provided that each sub-fund may be held severally liable for its own debts and obligations.

- 2.3.6 Deposits with credit institutions which are repayable on demand or have the right to be withdrawn, and maturing in no more than 12 months, provided that the credit institution has its registered office in a Member State or if the registered office of the credit institution is situated in a non-Member State, provided that it is subject to prudential rules considered by the CSSF as equivalent to those laid down in EU law.
- 2.3.7 Financial derivative instruments, including equivalent cash settled instruments, dealt in on a regulated market referred to under in 2.3.1 to 2.3.3 above, and/or OTC financial derivative instruments, provided that:
 - 2.3.7.1 the underlying consists of instruments covered by this Section 2.3, financial indices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates or currencies, in which a Fund may invest in accordance with its investment objectives as stated in Appendix I in respect of the relevant Fund and this Prospectus;
 - 2.3.7.2 the counterparties to OTC financial derivative transactions are institutions subject to prudential supervision, and belonging to the categories approved by the CSSF; and
 - 2.3.7.3 OTC financial derivative transactions are subject to reliable and verifiable valuation on a daily basis and can be sold, liquidated or closed by an offsetting transaction at any time at their fair market value at the Company's initiative.
- 2.3.8 Money Market Instruments other than those dealt in on a Regulated Market if the

issue or issuer of such instruments is itself regulated for the purpose of protecting investors and savings, and provided that they are:

- 2.3.8.1 issued or guaranteed by a central, regional or local authority, a central bank of a Member State, the European Central Bank, the EU or the European Investment Bank, a non-Member State or, in the case of a federal state, by one of the members making up the federation, or by a public international body to which one or more Member States belong; or
- 2.3.8.2 issued by an undertaking any securities of which are dealt in a regulated market referred to under 2.3.1 to 2.3.3 above; or
- 2.3.8.3 issued or guaranteed by an establishment subject to prudential supervision, in accordance with criteria defined by EU law, or by an establishment which is subject to and complies with prudential rules considered by the CSSF as equivalent to those laid down in EU law; or
- 2.3.8.4 issued by other bodies belonging to the categories approved by the CSSF provided that investments in such instruments are subject to investor protection equivalent to that laid down in 2.3.8.1 to 2.3.8.3 above, and provided that the issuer (i) is a company whose capital and reserves amount at least to ten million Euro (EUR 10,000,000.-) and (ii) which presents and publishes its annual accounts in accordance with Directive 2013/34/EU, (iii) is an entity which, within a group of companies which includes one or several listed companies, is dedicated to the financing of the group, or (iv) is an entity which is dedicated to the financing of securitisation vehicles which benefit from a banking liquidity line.
- 2.4 However, each Fund may:
 - 2.4.1 invest up to 10% of its net assets in Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments other than those referred to under Section 2.3 above;
 - 2.4.2 hold ancillary liquid assets (which restriction may exceptionally and temporarily be exceeded if the Board considers this to be in the best interests of the Shareholders);
 - 2.4.3 borrow the equivalent of up to 10% of its net assets provided that the borrowing is on a temporary basis; and
 - 2.4.4 acquire foreign currencies by means of back-to-back loans.
- 2.5 The following investment restrictions shall also be observed by each Fund in respect of each issuer:

Rules for Risk Spreading

2.6 For the calculation of the limits set out in Sections 2.7 to 2.12 and 2.15 below, companies

belonging to the same group of companies shall be treated as a single issuer.

Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments

- 2.7 Each Fund may not invest more than 10% of its net assets in Transferable Securities or Money Market Instruments issued by the same issuer. The total value of the Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments held by each Fund in issuers in which more than 5% of its net assets are invested, must not exceed 40% of the value of such Fund's net assets. This restriction does not apply to deposits with financial institutions that are governed by prudential regulations or to OTC financial derivative transactions. For the purposes of this Section 2.7, a Fund will treat each mortgage-backed or asset-backed subfund as a separate issue of a separate issuer, although such sub-funds may be part of the same master fund, sponsored by the same sponsor, or serviced by the same service provider.
- 2.8 The 10% limit laid down in Section 2.7 is raised to 20% in the case of Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments issued by the same group of companies.
- 2.9 The 10% limit laid down in Section 2.7 is raised to a maximum of 35% if the Transferable Securities or Money Market Instruments are issued or guaranteed by a Member State, by its local authorities, by a non-Member State or by public international bodies to which one or more Member States are members.
- 2.10 The 10% limit laid down in in Section 2.7 is raised to 25% for certain debt securities issued by a credit institution whose registered office is in a Member State and which is subject by law to special public supervision designed to protect the holders of debt securities. In particular, sums deriving from the issue of such debt securities must be invested pursuant to the law in assets which, during the whole period of validity of the debt securities, are capable of covering claims attaching to the debt securities and which, in event of bankruptcy of the issuer, would be used on a priority basis for the reimbursement of the principal and payment of accrued interest. To the extent that a Fund invests more than 5% of its net assets in such debt securities, issued by the same issuer, the total value of such investments may not exceed 80% of the value of that Fund's net assets.
- 2.11 The Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments referred to in Sections 2.9 and 2.10 above are not taken into account for the purpose of applying the 40% limit referred to in Section 2.7 above.
- 2.12 Without prejudice to the limits laid down in 2.24 et seq. below, the limits laid down in Section 2.7 are raised to maximum 20% for investment in shares and/or debt securities issued by the same body and when the Fund's investment policy is aimed at duplicating the composition of a certain share or debt securities index, which is recognised by the CSSF and meets the following criteria:
 - 2.12.1 the index's composition is sufficiently diversified;
 - 2.12.2 the index represents an adequate benchmark for the market to which it refers;
 - 2.12.3 the index is published in an appropriate manner.

The 20% limit is increased to 35% where that proves to be justified by exceptional conditions, in particular in Regulated Markets where certain Transferable Securities or Money Market Instruments are highly dominant. The investment up to this limit is only permitted for one single issuer.

Bank Deposits

2.13 Each Fund may not invest more than 20% of its net assets in deposits made with the same body.

Financial Derivative Instruments

- 2.14 The risk exposure to a counterparty of the Fund in OTC financial derivative transactions may not exceed 10% of the relevant Fund's net assets when the counterparty is a credit institution referred to in Section 2.3.6 above, or 5% of its net assets in the other cases.
- 2.15 Each Fund may invest in financial derivative instruments provided that the exposure to the underlying assets does not exceed in aggregate the investment limits laid down in Sections 2.7 to 2.12, 2.13, 2.14, 2.20 and 2.23). When a Fund invests in index based financial derivative instruments, these investments do not have to be combined to the limits laid down in 2.7 to 2.12, 2.13, 2.14, 2.20 and 2.23).
- 2.16 When a Transferable Security or Money Market Instrument embeds a financial derivative instrument, the latter must be taken into account when applying the provisions laid down in 2.15 and 2.17 and when determining the risks arising on transactions in financial derivative instruments.
- 2.17 With regard to financial derivative instruments, the Company, for each Fund, will ensure that its overall risk exposure relating to financial derivative instruments does not exceed the total net assets of the Fund. As a general rule, a Fund cannot have a global exposure greater than its net asset value and as a consequence there is a limit to a Fund's exposure of 100% of its net asset value. The total risk exposure may therefore not be greater than 210% of the net asset value, including the 10% of the net asset value that each Fund may borrow on a temporary basis.
- 2.18 The risks exposure is calculated taking into account the current value of the underlying assets, the counterparty risk, future market movements and the time available to liquidate the positions.

Shares or Units in Open-Ended Funds

- 2.19 Each Fund may not invest more than 20% of its net assets in shares or units of a single UCITS or other UCI referred to in 2.3.5 above.
- 2.20 Furthermore, for each Fund, investments made in UCIs other than UCITS, may not exceed, in aggregate, 30% of the net assets of the relevant Fund.
- 2.21 To the extent that a UCITS or UCI is composed of several sub-funds and provided that the principle of segregation of commitments of the different sub-funds is ensured in relation to third parties, each sub-fund shall be considered as a separate entity for the application of the limit laid down in Section 2.19 above.

Combined Limits

- 2.22 Notwithstanding the individual limits laid down in Sections 2.7, 2.13 and 2.14, each Fund may not combine:
 - 2.22.1 investments in Transferable Securities or Money Market Instruments issued by;
 - 2.22.2 deposits made with; and/or
 - 2.22.3 exposures arising from OTC financial derivative transactions undertaken with;
 - a single body, in excess of 20% of its net assets.
- 2.23 The limits set out in Sections 2.7 to 2.12, 2.13 and 2.14 cannot be combined. Thus, investments by each Fund in Transferable Securities or Money Market Instruments issued by the same body or in deposits or financial derivative instruments made with this body in accordance with 2.7 to 2.12, 2.13 and 2.14 may not exceed a total of 35% of the net assets of that Fund.

Restrictions with Regard to Control

- 2.24 A Fund may not acquire any shares carrying voting rights which would enable it to exercise significant influence over the management of an issuing body.
- 2.25 Each Fund may acquire no more than:
 - 2.25.1 10% of the outstanding non-voting shares of the same issuer;
 - 2.25.2 10% of the outstanding debt securities of the same issuer;
 - 2.25.3 25% of the shares or units of the same UCITS and/or other UCI;
 - 2.25.4 10% of the Money Market Instruments of the same issuer.

The limits set in 2.25.1 to 2.25.4 may be disregarded at the time of acquisition if at that time the gross amount of debt securities or Money Market Instruments, or the net amount of the securities in issue, cannot be calculated.

- 2.26 The limits laid down in Sections 2.24 and 2.25 are waived as regards to:
 - 2.26.1 Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments issued or guaranteed by a Member State or its local authorities;
 - 2.26.2 Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments issued or guaranteed by a non-Member State;
 - 2.26.3 Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments issued by public international bodies of which one or more Member States are members;
 - 2.26.4 shares held in the capital of a company incorporated in a non-Member State which invests its assets mainly in securities of issuing bodies having their registered office in that State, where under the legislation of that State, such holding represents the only way in which the Company, for each Fund, can invest in the

- securities of issuing bodies of that State and provided that the investment policy of the company complies with regulations governing risk diversification and restrictions with regard to control laid down herein;
- 2.26.5 shares held in the capital of subsidiary companies carrying on only the business of management, advice or marketing in the country/ state where the subsidiary is located, in regard to the repurchase of the Shares at the Shareholders' request exclusively on its or their behalf.
- 2.27 Furthermore, the following restrictions will have to be complied with:
 - 2.27.1 Each Fund may not acquire either precious metals or certificates representing them.
 - 2.27.2 Each Fund may not acquire real estate, except when such acquisition is essential for the direct pursuit of its business.
 - 2.27.3 Each Fund may not issue warrants or other instruments giving holders the right to purchase Shares in such Fund.
 - 2.27.4 Without prejudice to the possibility of a Fund to acquire debt securities and to hold bank deposits, each Fund may not grant loans or act as guarantor on behalf of third parties. This restriction does not prohibit a Fund from acquiring Transferable Securities, Money Market Instruments or other financial instruments referred to in 2.3.5, 2.3.7 and 2.3.8 that are not fully paid-up.
 - 2.27.5 Each Fund may not carry out uncovered sales of Transferable Securities, Money Market Instruments or other financial instruments referred to in 2.3.5, 2.3.7 and 2.3.8.

2.28 Notwithstanding the above provisions:

- 2.28.1 Each Fund does not necessarily need to comply with the limits referred to herein when exercising subscription rights attaching to Transferable Securities or Money Market Instruments which form part of its assets;
- 2.28.2 If the limits referred to above are exceeded for reasons beyond the control of a Fund or the Company or as a result of the exercise of subscription rights, the relevant Fund must adopt as a priority objective for its sales transactions the remedying of that situation, taking due account of the interests of its Shareholders.
- 2.28.3 The Management Company employs a risk management process which enables it to monitor and measure at any time the risk of the positions and their contribution to the overall risk profile of each Fund. The Management Company employs a process allowing for accurate and independent assessment of the value of OTC financial derivative instruments.
- 2.29 Information relating to the quantitative limits that apply in the risk management of the Company, to the methods chosen to this end and to the recent evolution of the main

instrument categories' risks and yields may be provided to investors upon request.

- 2.30 The Company may employ techniques and instruments in respect of Transferable Securities and Money Market Instruments subject always to the parameters published by the CSSF provided always that such techniques and instruments are employed for the purpose of hedging and investment purposes. Where such operations concern the use of financial derivative instruments, these parameters shall conform to the 2010 Law. Under no circumstances shall these operations cause the Company to diverge from its investment objectives as laid down in the Prospectus, Appendix I in respect of the relevant Fund, the KIID and the Articles of Incorporation.
- 2.31 A Fund may subscribe, acquire and/or hold Shares of one or more Funds (**Target Fund(s)**), without it being subject to the requirements of the 1915 Law with respect to the subscription, acquisition and/or the holding by a company of its own Shares provided that:
 - 2.31.1 the Target Fund does not, in turn, invest in the Fund invested in such Target Fund; and
 - 2.31.2 no more than 10% of the net assets of the Target Funds whose acquisition is contemplated may, pursuant to the Articles of Incorporation, be invested in aggregate in units of other UCIs; and
 - 2.31.3 voting rights, if any, attaching to the relevant shares of the Target Fund(s) are suspended for as long as they are held by the Fund concerned and without prejudice to the appropriate processing in the accounts and the periodic reports; and
 - 2.31.4 in any event, for as long as these shares of the Target Fund(s) are held by the Company, their value will not be taken into consideration for the calculation of the net assets of the Company for the purposes of verifying the minimum threshold of the net assets of the Company as imposed by law.

SFTR

2.32 The Company will not invest in a SFT or TRS.

APPENDIX III DIRECTORY

The Company:

Foresight SICAV

3, rue Gabriel Lippmann, L-5365 Munsbach, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

Board of Directors of the Company:

Jasper Jansen (Chairman) Adela Baho (Director) Nick Scullion (Director) Mark Brennan (Director)

Management Company:

FundRock Management Company S.A 33, Rue de Gasperich. L-5826 Hesperange, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

Boards of Directors of the Management Company

Chairman

Mr Michel Marcel VAREIKA
Independent Non-Executive Director
Luxembourg

Members

Mr Romain DENIS

Executive Director – Managing Director, FundRock Management Company S.A. Luxembourg

Mr Thibault GREGOIRE

Executive Director – Chief Financial Officer, FundRock Management Company S.A. Luxembourg

Mrs Tracey MCDERMOTT
Independent Non-Executive Director
Luxembourg

Mr Xavier PARAIN

Executive Director – Chief Executive Officer, FundRock Management Company S.A. Luxembourg

Conducting Officers

Mr Romain DENIS, Executive Director - Managing Director

Mr Emmanuel NANTAS, Director - Compliance

Mr Franck CARAMELLE, Director – Alternatives Investments

Investment Manager:

Foresight Group LLP

The Shard, 32 London Bridge Street, London SE1 9SG, UK

Administrative Agent, Registrar and Transfer Agent:

Apex Fund Services S.A

3, rue Gabriel Lippmann, L-5365 Munsbach, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

Depositary and Paying Agent:

Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (publ), Luxembourg Branch 4 rue Peternelchen, L-2370 Howald, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

Global Distributor:

Foresight Group LLP

The Shard, 32 London Bridge Street, London, SE1 9SG, UK

Auditor:

Deloitte Audit

20, boulevard de Kockelscheuer, L-1821 Luxembourg

UK Legal Adviser:

Shakespeare Martineau

No 1 Colmore Square, Birmingham, B4 6AA, UK

Luxembourg Legal Adviser:

Van Campen Liem Luxembourg

2, rue Dicks, L-1417 Luxembourg